
Shropshire Council
Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall
Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND

Date:  17th November 2016

Committee: 
Pensions Committee

Date: Friday, 25 November 2016
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, SY2 6ND

You are requested to attend the above meeting. 
The Agenda is attached.

Claire Porter
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer)

Members of the Committee:
Thomas Biggins 
Anne Chebsey
Andrew Davies                             
Malcolm Pate

Co-opted Members (Voting):
Malcolm Smith  
David Wright

Co-opted Members (Non-Voting):
Jean Smith (Pensioner Representative)
Nigel Neat (Employee Representative)
Vacancy (Employee Representative)



Substitute Members of the Committee:
Joyce Barrow (SC)
Roger Evans (SC)
Stuart West (SC)
Michael Wood (SC)
Lee Carter (T&W)   
Adrian Lawrence (T&W) 
Vacancy (Pensioner Rep)  
Vacancy (Employee Rep)

 
Your Committee Officer is: 

Tim Ward  Committee Officer
Tel:  01743 257713
Email:  tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk



AGENDA
1 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

2 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting 
on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should 
leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

3 Minutes of the last Meeting (Pages 1 - 4)

The minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2016 area attached for 
confirmation marked 3

Contact: Tim Ward (01743 257713)

4 Public Questions 

To receive any public questions or petitions from the public, notice of which has 
been given in accordance with Procedure Rule 14.  The deadline for this 
meeting is 5.00 pm on Tuesday 22 November 2016

5 Blackrock (Hedge Funds and Fixed Income) 

Peter Hunt, John Ware and James Edwards will give a presentation

6 Harbourvest (Private Equity) 

Kathleen Bacon and Emily Archer will give a presentation

7 Mercer (Actuarial Valuation) 

John Livesey will give a presentation

8 Corporate Governance Monitoring (Pages 5 - 50)

The report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 8.

Contact: Justin Bridges (01743 252072)



9 LGPS Central Investment Pooling (Pages 51 - 72)

The report of the Head of Finance, Governance & Assurance is attached, 
marked 9.

Contact: James Walton (01743 258915)

10 Actuarial Valuation 2016 (Pages 73 - 80)

The report of the Head of Finance, Governance & Assurance is attached, 
marked 9.

Contact: James Walton (01743 258915)

11 Funding Strategy Statement (Pages 81 - 114)

The report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 11.

Contact: Justin Bridges (01743 252072)

12 Pensions Administration Monitoring Report (Pages 115 - 142)

The report of the Pension Administration Manager is attached, marked 12.

Contact: Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)

13 Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider a resolution under paragraph 10.2 of the Council's Access to 
Information Procedure Rules that the proceedings of the Committee in relation 
to Agenda Items 14 to 18 shall not be conducted in public on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by the 
categories specified against them.

14 Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Categories 2 and 3) (Pages 143 - 146)

The exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2016 are attached for 
confirmation, marked 14.

Contact: Tim Ward (01743 257713)



15 Investment Monitoring Report  (Exempted by Category 3) 

The exempt report of the Head of Treasury and Pensions is to follow marked 15

Contact Justin Bridges (01743 252072)

16 New Admission Bodies (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 147 - 150)

The exempt report of the Pensions Administration Manager is attached marked 
16

Contact Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)

17 Appeals under the Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure (Exempted by 
Category 3) (Pages 151 - 154)

The exempt report of the Pension Administration Manager is attached, marked 
17.

Contact: Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)

18 Record of Breaches (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 155 - 160)

The exempt report of the Pension Administration Manager is attached, marked 
18.

Contact: Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)





Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 21 September 2016

                 

Pensions Committee

25 November 2016

10.00 am

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 21 SEPTEMBER 
2016 
10.00 AM - 12.38 PM

Responsible Officer:    Tim Ward
Email:  tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk    Tel:  01743 257713

Present: 
Members of the Committee:
Councillor Malcolm Pate (Chairman)
Councillors Thomas Biggins, Anne Chebsey and Andrew Davies 

Co-Opted Members (Voting):
Councillors Malcolm Smith and David Wright

Co-Opted Members (Non-Voting):
Jean Smith

18 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

18.1 There were no apologies for absence

19 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

19.1 Members were reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting 
on any matter in which they had a disclosable pecuniary interest and should leave 
the room prior to the commencement of the debate

20 Minutes 

20.1 RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2016 be approved and signed by 
the Chairman as a true record.

21 Public Questions 

21.1 There were no questions from members of the public

22 Harris Associates (Global Equities) 

22.2 The meeting received an update from representatives of Harris Associates.in which 
they gave a background to their company and outlined the various strategies that 
they were following.  The then took questions from the Committee



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 21 September 2016

23 Internal Audit Quality Assurance Improvement Programme 

23.1 The Committee received the report of the Head of Internal Audit which provided 
Members with an update on the External Assessment review planned in November 
2016.

23.2 RESOLVED:

That the Committee endorse the information set out in the report.

24 Internal Audit Outturn Report for Shropshire County Pension Fund 2015/16 

24.1 The meeting received the report of the Head of Internal Audit which provided 
members with details of work undertaken by Internal Audit for the year ending 31 
March 2016.

24.2 The Head of Internal Audit informed Members that 100% of the plan had been 
delivered and that five good assurances had been made.

24.3 RESOLVED:-

That the Committee endorse: -

a) Performance against the Audit Plan for the year ended 31 March 2016; and
b) The Audit Manager’s positive year end opinion on the Fund’s governance, risk 

management and internal control environment for 2015/16 on the basis of the 
work undertaken and management responses received.

RESOLVED:

That under paragraph 10.2 of the Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules 
that the proceedings of the Committee in relation to the next item shall not be 
conducted in public on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined by the categories specified against them.

25 Unconstrained Equity Recap and Introduction to Harris (Exempted by Category 
3) 

25.1 The Committee received a presentation from Aon Hewitt

RESOLVED

That the meeting return to public session

26 External Audit - The Audit Findings for Shropshire County Pension Fund 
2015/16 

26.1 The meeting received the report of Grant Thornton which set out the external audit 
findings for the Shropshire County Pension Fund.  Members were advised that an 



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 21 September 2016

unqualified audit opinion would be given in respect of the financial statements for 
the year ending 31 March 2016.

26.2 RESOLVED:

That Members  note the contents of the report.

27 Pension Fund Annual Accounts 2015/16 

27.1 The Committee received the report of Head of Finance, Governance and 
Assurance which provided Members with the Shropshire Council Pension Fund 
Annual Report 2015/16 and an update on the annual audit.

27.2 RESOLVED:

That the Committee approve the Pension Fund Annual Report 2015/16

28 Pensions Administration Monitoring 

28.1 Members received the report of the Pensions Administration Manager (copy 
attached to the signed minutes) which provided Members with monitoring 
information on the performance of and issues affecting the Pensions Administration 
Team.

28.2 Members were advised that annual benefit statements for deferred worker had 
been issued at the end of July and that these would be issued electronically next 
year through the website unless individual members requested to receive a paper 
copy.

28.3 RESOLVED:

That Members accept the position as set out in the report.

29 Corporate Governance Monitoring 

29.1 Members received the report of the Investment officer which informed Members of 
Corporate Governance and socially responsible investment issues arising in the 
quarter 1 April 2016 to 30 June 2016

29.2 RESOLVED:

That Members accept the position as set out in the report, Manager Voting Reports 
at Appendix A and BMO Global Asset Management Responsible Engagement 
Overlay Activity Report at Appendix B

30 Exclusion of Press and Public 

30.1 RESOLVED:

That under paragraph 10.2 of the Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules 
that the proceedings of the Committee in relation to the next item shall not be 
conducted in public on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined by the categories specified against them.



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 21 September 2016

31 Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Categories 2 and 3) 

31.1 RESOLVED

That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2016 be approved and 
signed by the Chairman as a true record

32 View Points Survey Results (Exempted by Category 3) 

32.1 Members received a presentation from Mr Louis-Paul Hill, Aon Hewitt on the results 
of the View Point Survey.

33 Private Equity Recommendations (Exempted by Category 5) 

33.1 Members received a report which set out private equity recommendations

33.2 RESOLVED:

That the recommendations contained in the exempt report be approved

34 Investment Monitoring - Quarter to 30 June 2016 (Exempted by Category 3) 

34.1 The Committee received the exempt report of the Head of Treasury and Pensions 
(copy attached to the Exempt signed Minutes) which provided Members with 
monitoring information on investment performance and managers for the quarter 
period to 31 March 2016, and reported on the technical meetings held with 
managers since the quarter end.  

34.2 RESOLVED:  

That the position as set out in the exempt report by the Head of Treasury and 
Pensions be noted

(The full version of Minute 25 and Minutes 31 to 34 constitutes exempt information 
under Categories 2 and 3 of Paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to Information 
Rules and has accordingly been withheld from publication).

Signed (Chairman)

Date: 



Committee and Date

Pensions Committee

25 November 2016

10.00am

Item

8
Public

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MONITORING

Responsible Officer Ed Roberts
e-mail: ed.roberts@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:  (01743) 252078

1.  Summary

1.1 The report is to inform members of Corporate Governance and socially 
responsible investment issues arising in the quarter 1st July 2016 to 30th 

September 2016. 

2.  Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to accept the position as set out in the report, Manager 
Voting Reports at Appendix A and BMO Global Asset Management 
Responsible Engagement Overlay Activity Report at Appendix B.

REPORT

3.  Risk Assessment and Opportunies Appraisal

3.1 Risk Management is part of the Pension Fund’s structured decision-making 
process by ensuring that investment decisions are taken by those best 
qualified to take them.

3.2 The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the 
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3 The Fund’s Corporate Governance Policy enables it to influence the 
environmental policies of the companies in which it invests.

3.4 There are no direct Equalities or Community consequences.

4.  Financial Implications

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

5.  Background

5.1 The Shropshire County Pension Fund has been actively voting for over fifteen 
years at the Annual General Meetings and Extraordinary General Meetings of 
the companies in which it invests. Voting is carried out by individual Fund 
Managers on all equity portfolios.

mailto:ed.roberts@shropshire.gov.uk


Pensions Committee, 25 November 2016: Corporate Governance Monitoring

5.2 The Fund is also addressing its social responsibility through a strategy of 
responsible engagement with companies. BMO Global Asset Management 
provide this responsible engagement overlay on the Fund’s UK equities 
portfolio.

6.  Manager Voting Activity

6.1 Details of managers voting activity during the quarter relating to equity 
portfolios are attached (Appendix A).

7.  Responsible Engagement Activity

7.1 During the last quarter BMO Global Asset Management have continued to 
actively engage with companies on the Fund’s behalf. An update on the 
engagement activities for the quarter is attached at Appendix B in the REO 
Activity report.  

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)
Corporate Governance Monitoring report, Pensions Committee 21 September 2016

Cabinet Member
N/A

Local Member
N/A

Appendices
A. Manager Voting Activity Reports.
B. BMO Global Asset Management Responsible Engagement Overlay Reports.



























































































Committee and Date
Pension Committee
25 November 2016

Item

9
Public

LGPS CENTRAL - INVESTMENT POOLING

Responsible Officer James Walton
e-mail: james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:  (01743) 

258915

1. Summary

1.1 This report outlines the changes that will be required to the 
operational and governance arrangements for the Shropshire County 
Pension Fund following recent amendment of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) Investment Regulations.

1.2 The revised regulations require all LGPS administering authorities in 
England and Wales to enter into joint (pooled) arrangements with 
other LGPS pension funds for the management of their investment 
assets, with effect from 1st April 2018, in order to achieve scale 
economies and increase investment capacity.

1.3 The Shropshire County Pension Fund has been working with seven 
partner funds on a proposal which will meet the criteria for pooling laid 
down by the Secretary of State, by establishing a jointly owned 
investment management company, to be known as ‘LGPS Central’.

1.4 The proposal to establish LGPS Central is supported by a 
comprehensive business case, approved at Pensions Committee on 
28 June 2016. The business case has been reviewed by a joint 
Department for Communities and Local Government/Treasury (HMT) 
Review Panel, and Ministerial consent has been received.  Each 
participating Pension Fund will be taking the recommendations set out 
in this report to their respective administering authority Full Council 
Meeting’s in order to approve these recommendations and formally 
approve the pooling arrangements. Proceeding with the proposals set 
out in this report, therefore, is subject to the approval of all the 
participating Pension Funds, which will be sought at their respective 
Council meetings over the coming months. 

2. Recommendations

Pension Committee are asked to recommend that Council 
approve the following recommendations:-

mailto:james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk


Pension Committee 25 November 2016: LGPS Central – Investment Pooling

Contact:  James Walton on (01743) 258915 2

2.1 To enter into an Inter Authority Agreement with Cheshire West & 
Chester Council, Derbyshire County Council, Leicestershire County 
Council, Nottinghamshire County Council, Staffordshire County 
Council, Wolverhampton City Council and Worcestershire County 
Council to establish a joint pension fund investment pool, in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 
and pursuant to that Inter Authority Agreement set up; and operate a 
Joint Committee under s102 of the Local Government Act 1972 to 
oversee the joint investment arrangements.

2.2 To agree that Cheshire West and Chester shall provide governance 
and administrative support to the Joint Committee on behalf of the 
participating Council’s, subject to the appropriate cost sharing 
arrangements in respect of officer time and other expenses.  

2.3 To become a joint shareholder of LGPS Central; a private company, 
limited by shares, held solely by the participating funds named in 
recommendation 2.1, on a ‘one fund, one vote’ basis; incorporated for 
investment management purposes and regulated under the Financial 
Services and Markets Act 2000.

2.4 To authorise the Shropshire Council Member who holds either the 
position of Chair or Vice Chair of the Shropshire County Pension 
Fund, to appoint themselves or other Shropshire Council Members of 
the Pension Committee to undertake the following roles: 

i) To act as the Council’s representative on the Joint Committee;
ii) To exercise the Council’s voting rights as a shareholder of 

LGPS Central, to be exercised in consultation with the Head of 
Finance Governance & Assurance (s151 Officer) where the 
vote is in respect of a Reserved Matter as set out in Schedule 1 
of the Shareholders agreement;

and each Member so appointed shall have delegated authority to 
undertake such roles. 

2.5 To agree that the Shropshire Council Members appointed under 
recommendation 2.4 above shall be authorised to appoint a 
substitute, provided that substitute is a Shropshire Council Member of 
the Pensions Committee, and agree that, wherever possible, the 
Member (or their substitute) appointed to the Joint Committee shall 
not be the same Member as currently appointed to the Shareholder 
Forum, so as to avoid potential conflicts of interest.

2.6 To agree that the signatory on behalf of the Council as Shareholder 
shall be the Council’s Head of Legal & Democratic Services. 

2.7 To appoint the Head of Finance Governance & Assurance (s151 
Officer) and Scheme Administrator of the Pension Fund or their 
nominated representative to represent the Council on a Practitioner 



Pension Committee 25 November 2016: LGPS Central – Investment Pooling

Contact:  James Walton on (01743) 258915 3

Advisory Forum, providing joint officer support to the Joint Committee 
and Shareholder Forum.

2.8 To approve the revised terms of reference for the Shropshire County 
Pension Fund Committee as set out in Appendix 3 to this report.

2.9 To delegate authority to the Head of Finance Governance & 
Assurance (s151 Officer) in consultation with the Shropshire Council 
Chair or Vice Chair of the Pension Committee to negotiate and agree 
all necessary legal agreements to establish a joint asset pool and 
investment management company as outlined in this report and to 
implement the recommendations and to authorise their execution.

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal
3.1 The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the        

provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.

3.2 There are no direct environmental, equalities or climate change 
consequences arising from this report.

4. Financial Implications
4.1 There is no direct impact on the Council’s revenue or capital budgets 

as all costs (including regulatory capital) will be met from the Pension 
Fund.

4.2 The estimated cost of setting up the jointly owned company is £3.2 
million, this will be shared equally between the participating funds, 
with Shropshire’s share being around £400,000. There will also be 
significant transition costs as existing investment mandates are 
unwound and funds are transferred into new collective investment 
vehicles.  It is not possible to accurately predict these costs, but the 
business case includes an estimate of £50million.  Transition costs 
will be shared between the funds on an equitable basis.

4.3 In addition, as the new company will be a regulated entity, under 
Financial Conducts Authority (FCA) rules, it will need to hold 
regulatory capital to guarantee its solvency. The regulatory capital 
requirement is expected to be in the region of £10 million (£1.25 
million per pension fund).

4.4 Estimated net total savings for the pool are in the region of £182 
million over a period from 2018/19 to 2032/33, with annual savings of 
around £29 million being achieved by the end of this period.  The 
comparative figures for the Shropshire County Pension Fund are 
£41.8 million and £3.5 million respectively.  

5. Background 
5.1 The LGPS is one of the largest funded pension schemes in the world 

with combined assets of around £200 billion. These are managed by 



Pension Committee 25 November 2016: LGPS Central – Investment Pooling

Contact:  James Walton on (01743) 258915 4

89 local administering authorities, who historically, have maintained 
separate arrangements of scheme assets, overseen by their 
respective Pension Fund Committees.

5.2 Between them it is estimated that administering authorities incur total 
administrative and management costs of around £500 million per 
year, a significant proportion of which relates to investment 
management fees paid to external fund managers.  Funds often use 
the same managers, offering the same or similar services but 
appointed under separate agreements and on different fee terms.

5.3 Funds also vary significantly in scale; large funds enjoy direct access 
to a wide range of investment markets and products and can often 
negotiate more competitive fees, whilst smaller funds have more 
restricted options due to lower levels of investible resources, and 
expertise and have less negotiating power in the market.

5.4 Over the past two and half years the government has explored a 
number of options for improving the efficiency and sustainability of the 
scheme, and has undertaken extensive consultation on the potential 
to deliver savings through greater collaboration.  A national cost 
benefit exercise, led by Hymans Robertson concluded that significant 
savings could be achieved through greater use of collective 
investment approaches, provided that certain regulatory restrictions 
were removed.

5.5 Subsequently, the government announced its intention to introduce a 
new regulatory framework which would facilitate collective investing 
and issued guidance and criteria to help administering authorities to 
develop proposals for pooling aimed at reducing costs and improving 
efficiency.  Initial proposals were required by February 2016, followed 
by more detailed business case submissions in July 2016, with a 
target implementation date of 1st April 2018.  The government also 
announced that ‘backstop’ powers would be introduced to allow the 
Secretary of State to intervene where authorities failed to bring 
forward sufficiently ambitious proposals in accordance with the 
guidance and criteria issued.  

5.6 The reasons for the recommendations are to allow the Council to 
comply with updated LGPS Investment Regulations which came into 
effect in November 2016, requiring all administering authorities to 
commit to an investment pooling arrangement which meets the criteria 
and guidance laid down by the Secretary of State in November 2015.

5.7 Where authorities fail to comply with the criteria and guidance, the 
Secretary of State has powers to intervene, and to issue a Direction 
requiring changes to investment strategies and investment 
management arrangements, or the transfer of the investment 
functions of an administering authority, either to himself or a 
nominated party.

5.8 The proposal to establish LGPS Central is supported by a 
comprehensive business case, which demonstrates the potential for 



Pension Committee 25 November 2016: LGPS Central – Investment Pooling

Contact:  James Walton on (01743) 258915 5

significant savings in investment costs and management fees over the 
longer term, without detriment to investment performance and local 
accountability. 

6. LGPS Central

6.1 Prior to the government’s announcement, the Shropshire County 
Pension Fund has already established close working links with a 
number of other funds in, and around, the Midlands area and had 
begun to explore the scope for wider collaboration, starting with a 
successful joint procurement exercise in 2015, which resulted in a 
substantial fee saving on the funds’ passively managed equity 
portfolio.  The fee reduction achieved was in the region of 50%; in 
cash terms around £100k per annum for the Shropshire Fund.

6.2 These informal links become the starting point for wide discussions in 
the context of the formal requirement for pooling, resulting in a joint 
proposal from Cheshire, Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Nottinghamshire, 
Shropshire, Staffordshire, West Midlands and Worcestershire to 
create ‘LGPS Central’, with combined assets of £35 billion.

6.3 Following confirmation from the Minister that this proposal was 
acceptable, a joint working group of officers, supported by external 
advisors, developed a detailed business case setting out how LGPS 
Central will meet the four key assessment criteria laid down by the 
government :-

Criteria 1 – Asset pool(s) that achieve the benefits of scale (£25 billion 
plus)

Criteria 2 – Strong governance and decision making

Criteria 3 – Reduced costs and value for money

Criteria 4 – Improved capacity and capability to invest in Infrastructure

6.4 Detailed reports have been presented to the Shropshire County 
Pension Fund Committee, explaining the key elements of the 
business case and seeking their approval for the proposed 
governance, oversight and management structure of the pool, which 
is summarised in Appendix 1.

6.5 The structure will allow participating funds to exercise control (both 
individually, and collectively) over the new arrangements, not only as 
investors in the pooled fund, but also as shareholders of the operator 
company, LGPS Central.

6.6 Whilst assets will be managed on a pooled basis, each fund will be 
able to exercise their investor rights independently, although clearly, 
benefits of scale will most effectively harnessed where parties work 
together, in a co-ordinated way to align their decision making.  An 
important example being social, environmental and governance 
policies and policies on the exercise of voting rights, where cross-



Pension Committee 25 November 2016: LGPS Central – Investment Pooling

Contact:  James Walton on (01743) 258915 6

voting between funds within the same pool would be both costly to 
administer and counter-productive.

6.7 The Joint Committee will be the forum for dealing with common 
investor issues, and for collective monitoring of the performance of the 
pool against the objectives set out in the LGPS Central business case 
submission.  The Joint Committee will however, have no formal 
decision making powers and recommendations will require the 
approval of individual authorities, in accordance with their local 
constitutional arrangements. An overview of the draft Inter Authority 
Agreement setting out the relationship between the participating 
pension Funds and the operation of the Joint Committee is set out in 
Appendix 2.

6.8 The Shareholder Forum, operating under company law, will have 
formal decision making powers.  The Shropshire County Pension 
Fund will have equal voting rights alongside the other participating 
funds, and unanimous decisions will be required on key strategic 
matters, which will be specified in the company Shareholders 
Agreement and Articles of Association.  This will include the 
appointment and dismissal of the company’s senior executives, 
approval of the company’s strategic plan and any significant financial 
transactions, such as major acquisitions and lending or borrowing. An 
overview of the Shareholder Agreement and key principles of the 
Articles of Association is set out in Appendix 2.

6.9 The degree of control to be exercised by the Shareholders through 
their reserve powers will be greater than is generally the case, in 
order to satisfy the Teckal exemption criteria (as now set out in 
Regulation 12 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015) and allow the 
company to undertake services on behalf of the investor funds without 
a formal procurement process. 

6.10 In order to avoid potential conflicts of interest and to maintain clarity 
over the governance arrangements, it is recommended that the 
Council nominates different representatives to the Joint Committee 
and the Shareholder Forum.

6.11 The government has also made clear their expectation that pooled 
entities must be registered with the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) 
and regulated under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, to 
ensure appropriate safeguards over the management of client 
monies.  As such, the new LGPS Central company will be subject to 
on-going oversight by the regulator and key management positions, 
including the company directors will need to be ‘approved persons’, 
able to demonstrate appropriate knowledge, expertise and track 
record in investment management.  They will also carry significant 
legal, personal liability for their actions and decisions.

6.12 The relative merits of buying, or renting an established operator to 
manage the day to day running of the pool, have been carefully 
considered against the benefits of setting up a jointly owned company, 
with associated shareholder rights.  The constituent funds 



Pension Committee 25 November 2016: LGPS Central – Investment Pooling

Contact:  James Walton on (01743) 258915 7

unanimously agreed that the latter option, whilst more expensive, 
offers significant advantages in terms of great flexibility and control, 
and this is the basis upon which the business case has been 
developed.

6.13 Staff who are currently employed by the partner Funds to manage 
their investments will transfer under the Transfer of Undertakings 
(Protection of Employment) regulations (TUPE) to the new company.   
As the Shropshire County Pension Fund does not currently have an 
in-house investment team, no staff transfer implications are 
anticipated for the Council, although the ability to access internal 
investment resources through the pool offers potential for additional 
future savings.

6.14 The detailed business case has been reviewed by a joint DCLG/HMT 
Review Panel, and Ministerial consent to proceed has been received.

7. Impact on the role of the Shropshire Pension Fund Committee

7.1 The current terms of reference for the Shropshire County Pension 
Fund are attached in Appendix 2, along with suggested amendments 
to reflect their post-pooling responsibilities.

7.2 For the most part, the role of the Committee will be unaffected by the 
implementation of pooling and the creation of LGPS Central.  The 
Committee will continue to be responsible for monitoring the overall 
management, performance and administration of the fund, and for 
setting investment strategy, including the overall allocation of assets, 
which is the critical factor in determining investment performance.

7.3 Importantly, they will also continue to be responsible for 
communicating with individual scheme members, whose benefits are 
guaranteed in law, and are therefore not affected by the new pooling 
arrangements or investment performance.

7.4 Responsibility for appointing investment managers and overseeing 
their performance, including any decision to dismiss, will however 
transfer to the Company, as will tactical decisions on the 
implementation of the overall investment strategy and the choice of 
specific investment vehicles.

8. Legal Aspects

8.1 Shropshire as an administering authority, will enter in to the joint 
agreements forming LGPS Central, establishing a Joint Committee, 
representation on the relevant bodies described and modifying the 
terms of reference of the Shropshire Pension Fund Committee, in 
reliance on the exclusive rights given to local authorities to undertake 
administrative arrangements of this nature in sections 101, 102, 112 
and 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 and the regulations made 
under these Acts; together with the general power within section 2 of 



Pension Committee 25 November 2016: LGPS Central – Investment Pooling

Contact:  James Walton on (01743) 258915 8

the Localism Act 2011 and the supporting provisions within section 
111 of the Local Government Act 1972.

8.2 These powers are exercised as a response to the Chancellor’s 
requirement in 2015 to pool pension assets to seek savings in 
management and administrative costs.  The proposals are subject to 
approval by the Secretary of State.  Whilst the government has not yet 
imposed a statutory mechanism for implementing pooled funds, there 
is a provision included in the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 that came 
into force on 1 November 2016 whereby the Secretary of State can 
require those administering authorities who do not come forward with 
sufficiently ambitious proposals to pool their assets with others. 
Shropshire has determined to be proactive in its arrangements and 
develop the model of pooled funds as described in this report via 
devolved powers.     

9. Risks and how Reduced

9.1 The key risks are:-
 failure to achieve the statutory implementation deadline of 1st 

April 2018
 failure to manage costs and savings in line with the agreed 

business case
 failure to meet the requirements of the FCA regulator
 failure to recruit appropriately skilled and experienced senior 

personnel to the new company

9.2 Comprehensive programme governance arrangements are in place to 
ensure that the statutory deadline for the implementation of pooling is     
achieved and that costs and savings are managed in accordance with 
the agreed business case.  The s151 officers of each of the 
participating funds sit on the LGPS Central Programme Board and 
regular joint meetings are held between the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of 
the respective Pension Fund Committees to ensure effective member 
oversight of progress and delivery.  The Shropshire County Pension 
Fund Committee and Local Pensions Board are also being updated 
regularly on key developments and decisions, as are the fund 
employers.

9.3 Expert advisers have been appointed to provide support on legal 
matters, FCA registration, taxation and overall programme 
management, and professional recruitment consultants are being 
appointed to assist and advise on executive recruitment and 
remuneration.

10. Alternative options

10.1 The options of renting or buying an operator to manage the pool 
           (rather than setting up a wholly owned company), have been 

considered and rejected due to market risk (limited supplier choice), 
and on governance grounds.  The option of setting up a non-
incorporated shared service arrangement has also been rejected due 



Pension Committee 25 November 2016: LGPS Central – Investment Pooling

Contact:  James Walton on (01743) 258915 9

to significant regulatory risk. It is planned that monthly briefing notes 
will be circulated to Pension Committee members in order to keep 
them informed of the progress in setting up the LGPS Central 
investment pool. The first one was produced in May 2016.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not 
include items containing exempt or confidential information)
Pensions Committee, 28 June 2016, LGPS Central Investment Pooling 
Shareholders Agreement
Inter Authority Agreement
Articles of Association

Cabinet Member 
Malcolm Pate, Leader

Local Member 
N/A

Appendices    
1 – Eversheds governance structure paper
2 – Overview of governance documents 
3 – Pension Committee Terms of Reference





bir_emp\2250786\1
8 November 2016 

LGPS Central 
Summary of LGPS Central Governance Structure  

7 November 2016



LGPS Central  
Summary of LGPS Central Governance Structure

bir_emp\2250786\1 1
8 November 2016 

This advice note has been prepared solely for LGPS Central (and its participating authorities) to provide a 
summary explanation of the structure of the LGPS Central governance arrangements and may be 
circulated to authorities’ committees when seeking approval for the structure. We do not accept liability 
to any other person in respect of this advice note.  This note is intended to be a summary of the structure 
and the detailed and definitive provisions of the governance structure can be found in the company’s 
Articles of Association, the Shareholders Agreement and the Inter Authority Agreement (containing the 
Joint Committee’s terms of reference and constitution and the terms of reference for the Practitioners 
Advisory Forum). 

1. Background

1.1 We have been asked to provide a high level summary of the LGPS Central governance structure, 
in particular setting out the roles and interactions of the key bodies, including LGPS Central 
Limited, the shareholder representatives, the Joint Committee and the Practitioners Advisory 
Forum.

1.2 Please note that the administering authorities retain their core duties and responsibilities as the 
administering authorities of their respective LGPS funds. Administering authorities may need to 
review their current internal governance arrangements to see if they will need reviewing once 
pooling is implemented (and/or to deal with the transition period whilst assets are being moved 
over to the pool). 

1.3 In broad terms the governance structure is summarised in the following diagram:



LGPS Central  
Summary of LGPS Central Governance Structure

bir_emp\2250786\1 2
8 November 2016 

2. LGPS Central Limited

2.1 LGPS Central Limited is a private company limited by shares. The company was incorporated in 
England and Wales on 13 October 2016 with registered number 10425159 under the Companies 
Act 2006. Its registered office is at Mander House, Wolverhampton. 

2.2 The company has been formed to act as an alternative investment fund manager to run and 
operate one or more collective investment vehicles (including an Authorised Contractual Scheme 
(“ACS”)) to allow the administering authorities to pool their respective investments. In due 
course the company will become authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

2.3 The company will be run by a board of directors which will comprise of three non-executive 
directors and two executive directors. Directors are appointed (and can be removed) by the 
shareholders. 

2.4 The company will have eight shareholders, Cheshire West and Chester Borough Council, 
Derbyshire County Council, Leicestershire County Council, Nottinghamshire County Council, 
Shropshire Council, Staffordshire County Council, Wolverhampton City Council and 
Worcestershire County Council. West Midlands Combined Authority is not a shareholder but will 
be represented through Wolverhampton City Council. 

3. Shareholder Representatives

3.1 Shareholder meetings will be the forum for dealing with the shareholder rights of the eight 
administering authorities as individual shareholders in the Operator. This is distinct from 
investor/customer matters dealt with by the Joint Committee (see below).

3.2 Each shareholder exercises one vote. Certain major decisions (e.g. changes to articles of 
association, rights in shares, buy-back of shares etc) which would have an effect on the 
shareholders’ rights are usually required, through the Companies Act 2006, to be approved by 
the shareholders at a general meeting called by the directors of the company. 

3.3 Shareholders can also via a ‘Shareholders’ Agreement’ provide that the company can only take 
certain actions with their prior approval (such as adopting strategic plan, board changes, entry 
into/termination of certain key contracts, changes to key employee terms and conditions).

3.4 In order to retain sufficient control over the company to address ‘Teckal’ issues from a 
procurement perspective, the Shareholders Agreement needs to provide that certain key 
strategic shareholder decisions will require unanimous approval of all the shareholders before 
they can be approved at a shareholder meeting. These are known as ‘reserved matters’ and are 
set out in the Shareholders Agreement.

3.5 Meetings of the shareholders are subject to the requirements of the Articles of Association of the 
Operator, the terms of the Shareholders Agreement and general company law. They are 
therefore subject to different rules to a Joint Committee meeting (for example in relation to 
areas such as access to information and voting rules) and for this reason shareholder meetings 
need to be kept separate from Joint Committee meetings. 

3.6 It is intended that shareholders will meet at least two times a year. 

3.7 Each authority will be represented at shareholder meetings by an appointed representative  of 
that authority. This may or may not be the same individual that represents the authority on the 
Joint Committee. This is a matter for each authority to decide. 

3.8 Having different individuals at the shareholder level and on the Joint Committee would clearly 
help to manage conflicts of interest (should they arise) and may assist in retaining clarity of 
governance functions being carried out. However it should equally be possible to put in place an 
appropriate conflicts policy to deal with potential conflicts. 



LGPS Central  
Summary of LGPS Central Governance Structure

bir_emp\2250786\1 3
8 November 2016 

4. Joint Committee

4.1 The Joint Committee will be the forum for discussing common investor/customer issues relating 
to the Operator and the ACS. 

4.2 Each administering authority will be an individual investor in the ACS (and any other pooled 
vehicles managed by the Operator) and therefore each authority will have investor rights 
afforded by the suite of key investor documents which, in the case of the ACS, are made up of 
the constitutive deed, application form, key investor information, prospectus and FCA handbook 
of rules and guidance. These investor rights are embedded in those documents and cover 
matters including the right to withdraw from the pooled vehicle, investor reporting (including 
frequency and content) and investor voting rights (for example, on proposed changes to the 
pooled vehicle).

4.3 The administering authorities do not want to delegate their actual key investment decision 
making powers or investor rights to the Joint Committee. Instead these will be retained for 
exercise by the individual administering authorities through their pension committees in the 
normal way, subject to consideration of any recommendations the Joint Committee may make. 

4.4 It is expected the Joint Committee will meet twice a year (with support from the Practitioners 
Advisory Forum) to discuss and agree a common consensus view on investor issues such as:

4.4.1 Operator service delivery and KPIs; and 

4.4.2 other Pool related investment issues, for example adopting common approaches to 
investment policies (for example common social, environmental and corporate 
governance policies or policies on voting rights). 

4.5 The Joint Committee would not make binding decisions on any of these issues but would make 
recommendations back to each administering authority (via the Practitioners Advisory Forum) to 
individually approve. Where any issues do need to be resolved, these will be decided by a 
majority vote and again each administering authority represented on the committee exercises 
one vote.

4.6 A joint committee structure established under the Local Government Act 1972 provides a tried 
and tested structure that delivers a clear and transparent separation of shareholder matters and 
investor/customer matters. 

5. Practitioners Advisory Forum

5.1 The Forum will be made up of an officer from each administering authority (such as the Section 
151 officer or a pension fund officer). The Forum is not a legal entity but a working group of 
officers. The terms of the Forum will be set out in an Inter Authority Agreement confirming how 
the Forum will be comprised, operate and be resourced and funded.

5.2 As this is a working group of officers, no statutory functions can be delegated to the Forum. The 
Role of the Forum is:

5.2.1 To support the meetings of the Joint Committee and action the Joint Committee’s 
recommendations back to the administering authorities; 

5.2.2 To act as a mechanism to facilitate discussions between the individual administering 
authorities as investors and the Operator; and  

5.2.3 To analyse the Pool-wide investment performance of the Operator, including its 
investment costs, customer service and delivery of wider investor services such as 
voting and responsible investment. The Forum will also review risk management and 
compliance arrangements from an investor perspective. 

5.3 The Practitioners Advisory Forum would not have a formal role at shareholder meetings but 
could attend to deliver presentations etc.



LGPS Central  
Summary of LGPS Central Governance Structure

bir_emp\2250786\1 4
8 November 2016 

Eversheds LLP

7 November 2016



LGPS Central  
Summary of LGPS Central Governance Structure

bir_emp\2250786\1 1
8 November 2016 

For more information, please contact:

Gary Delderfield
Partner

D: +44 (0)121 232 1786
Int: +44 121 232 1786
M: +44 (0)782 691 8202
GaryDelderfield@eversheds.com

115 Colmore Row
Birmingham 
B3 3AL

Privileged and confidential

eversheds.com
© Eversheds LLP 2016 Eversheds LLP
is a limited liability partnership



APPENDIX 2

SUMMARY OF GOVERNANCE DOCUMENTATION

As per the governance structure set out in Appendix 1, the governance arrangements are comprised 
in the following draft documents:

 Articles of Association
 Shareholders Agreement
 Inter Authority Agreement

The documents relate to the Council’s differing roles (as the Administrating Authority for the 
Pension Fund) in the project as both a Shareholder in the company, LGPS Central, and as an 
investment customer of LGPS Central. 

Shareholder documents

As the Shareholder, the Council’s role will be as a joint owner of the company with the collective 
discussions of the joint owners taking place at private Shareholder meetings, carried out in 
accordance with company law.  This role, and the relationship between the joint owners would be 
governed by the Articles and the Shareholders Agreement.  

Articles of Association

As LGPS Central Limited is a private company limited by shares, the company’s Articles of Association 
are essentially the Company’s constitution governing how it operates, the powers and 
responsibilities of the Directors and they ensure the company complies with company law.

The Articles include the following issues relevant to the role of the Shareholders:

 the liability of the shareholders being limited to the amount unpaid on their £1 share;
 the process by which a Shareholder may cease to be a shareholder in the company on at 

least 12 months’ notice;
 the process for the declaration of dividends and any payment of dividends to the 

Shareholders;
 arrangements  for the calling and the operation of Shareholder meetings, which will require 

a quorum of 4, where every Shareholder has one vote;

The Shareholders have no role in the day to day operation of the company, which are carried out by 
the Board of Directors, but are consulted on key strategic and operational matters of the company 
and these matters are set out in the list of Reserved Matters in the Shareholders Agreement. 

Shareholders Agreement

This is an agreement between the Shareholders and the Company which supplements some of the 
issues contained within the Articles and sets out the objectives and financing of the company.  It 
establishes some co-operation between the Shareholders of the company to set out their common 
objectives as joint owners of the company and sets out a framework as to how the Shareholders will 
act in relation to the company.



The Agreement includes:

 the requirement for the company to develop strategic plans and annual budgets;
 that dividends are to be distributed after profits are used to reduce Annual Operating 

Charge payable by each Shareholder;
 provision for Shareholder meetings to be held 2 times a year;
 agreement between the Shareholders about their conduct, including acting in good faith 

towards each other and acting to promote and develop the company;
 further detail around the process for exit by a Shareholder;
 the establishment of a policy and a committee to agree the remuneration of Directors, with 

any increase in remuneration and the policy to be approved by a Shareholder majority of 
75%;

 the list of Reserved Matters which require Shareholder approval prior to being implemented 
by the company and a process to resolve a deadlock situation between Shareholders, which 
include:
 the need for unanimous decisions on:

o extending the agreed scope of the business undertaken by the company;
o alter the company’s Articles;
o admit any additional shareholders or investors;
o decisions to wind the company up;
o appointment and removal of Directors;
o appointing and removing auditors;
o approving annual accounts;

 the need for majority decisions on:
o establishing and amending any employee pension scheme;
o declaration and payment of dividends;
o adopting or amending a written conflicts policy;
o entering into capital commitments or operating leases above set limits, unless 

approved in the strategic plan.

Investment Customer documents 

As an investor in the collective investment vehicle operated by the company, the Council has a 
customer role relating to the Pension Fund’s investments.  As set out in Appendix 1, discussions 
between the Pension Funds investing as the company’s customers will take place through the Joint 
Committee, whose meetings will operate through the usual public law requirements for such 
committee meetings.  

Inter-Authority Agreement

The Agreement establishes the Joint Committee between the Councils acting as the Administering 
Authorities on behalf of the investing Funds and sets out the Committee’s role and operation 
matters which includes:

 setting out the shared objectives of the members of the Committee;



 establishing Cheshire West and Chester Council as the lead authority to administer the Joint 
Committee, with the ability to recover its costs;

 a requirement for 2 meetings a year;
 sets the scope of discussions to be held by the Committee, which include matters requiring 

investor approval and matters relating to the company’s delivery of investment services to 
the Funds;

 process for withdrawal and termination of the agreement, and for dispute resolution
 a constitution for the Joint Committee, including each Council being represented by one 

elected member, the appointment of a Chair and establishing a quorum of 5;
 Terms of Reference for the Joint Committee and the Practitioners Advisory Forum and the 

relationship between the two bodies.





APPENDIX 3

COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE – PROPOSED CHANGES

Pension Fund Committee

Under the Cabinet structure in local government, management of the pension fund is a non-
executive function and this is reflected in the Shropshire Council Governance Structure.

The Pensions Committee was established in 1994 with responsibilities for all matters relating to the 
management and administration of the Shropshire County Pension Fund.  The Pensions Committee 
is a standing committee of the Council and is linked to Full Council by virtue of the Chairman or Vice 
Chairman being a Shropshire Council member.  It meets formally at least quarterly and more 
frequently if formal decisions are required.  In between meeting’s Chairman’s approval may be 
sought.

The Pension Fund Committee’s key responsibilities are to advise the Council on the management of 
the Shropshire County Pension Fund, including the management and administration of benefits and 
strategic management of Fund assets. The Committee is supported by the advice from an 
independent advisor and investment consultant. One advises on strategic issues and overall 
investment approach and the investment consultant provide analysis and advice of a technical 
nature in relation to portfolio construction, interpretation of performance measurement and the 
monitoring of investment managers. The following terms of reference for the Pension Committee 
have previously been approved in the Governance Compliance Statement in accordance with LGPS 
Regulations 2013:-

Terms of Reference:
a) To advise the Council on the arrangements for the proper administration of the Shropshire County 
Pension Fund in accordance with the Local Government Regulations 2013 and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009;
b) To advise employing organisations and employees within the Fund of their benefits,
contributions and the financial performance of the Fund;
c) To advise and assist the Council on the determination of any matters of general
policy relating to the investment of the Pension Fund;
d) To approve the annual report and accounts of the Fund and hold an Annual Meeting.

The Pensions Committee formal terms of
reference (above) are interpreted as including:
a) Admission of employing organisations to the Fund where discretion is permitted;
b) Appointment of external advisors and actuaries to assist with the administration of
the Fund, and of external managers for the management of the Fund’s portfolio of assets;
c) Approval of the periodic formal valuation of the Fund;
d) Consideration of the advice of the Council’s external investment advisers and of the
Scheme Administrator;
e) Determination of the objectives and general investment approach to be adopted by
external fund managers;
f) Review and monitoring of investment transactions and the overall investment performance of the 
Fund;
g) To develop and implement shareholder policies on corporate governance issues;
h) To review and approve on a regular basis the content of the Statement of Investment
Principles and to monitor compliance of the investment arrangements with the Statement;
i) To review the Funding Strategy Statement in detail at least every three years ahead of the



triennial valuations being carried out, in order to inform the valuation process;
j) To review and approve on a regular basis the Communications Policy for the Fund;

The role of Scheme Administrator is held by the officer who has responsibilities under S151 of the
Local Government Act 1972 and provides financial (non-investment) advice to the Committee, 
including advice on financial management, issues of compliance with internal regulations and 
controls, budgeting and accounting and liaison with independent advisers.

Legal advice is provided by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services.

The remit for the LGPS vests formal statutory responsibility for the LGPS and fund investment with
the administering authority which is answerable for the effective and prudent management of the
scheme.

The terms of reference of the Committee need to be amended due to the pooling of investments in 
LGPS Central Ltd from 1 April 2018.  The wording to be inserted is highlighted in bold text and the 
wording to be removed in red text.

 Selection, appointment and dismissal of an investment pooling operator to manage the 
assets of the Fund.

 Determining what the administering authority requires the pool to provide to enable it to 
execute its local investment strategy effectively.

 Receiving and considering reports and recommendations from the oversight committee, 
and ensuring that the Fund’s investor rights and views are represented effectively.

 Identifying and managing the risk associated with investment pooling
 Ensuring that appropriate measures are in place to monitor and report on the ongoing 

costs of investment pooling.
 Ensuring the responsible investment, corporate governance and voting policies of the Fund 

are delivered effectively.
 Appointment of external advisors and actuaries to assist with the administration of

the Fund, and of external managers for the management of the Fund’s portfolio of assets 
 Determination of the objectives and general investment approach to be adopted by

external fund managers;
 To review and approve on a regular basis the content of the Statement of Investment
 Principles Investment Strategy Statement and to monitor compliance of the investment 

arrangements with the Statement.
 Reviewing and advising on the development of an Funding Strategy Statement, 

Administration Policy, Governance Compliance Statement, Breaches Policy & Training 
Policy and publish a Pension Fund Annual Report

The rest of the terms of reference remain the same. The Council are asked to approve the revised 
terms of reference.



Committee and Date
Pensions Committee

25 November 2016

10.00

Item

10
Public

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 2016

Responsible Officer James Walton
e-mail: james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:  (01743) 

258915

1. Summary

1.1 The report introduces the formal presentation of the 2016 Actuarial 
Valuation Report from the Fund’s Actuary, Mercer.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to formally approve, with any comments, the Actuarial 
Valuation Report.

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal
3.1 The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the        

provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.

3.2 There are no direct environmental, equalities or climate change 
consequences arising from this report.

3.3 The Fund is required to be formally valued by the Actuary every 3 years in 
order to determine the overall funding level and set employer contribution 
rates.

4. Financial Implications
4.1 The financial implications to consider are outlined in the Appendix to this 

report and have been communicated to employers within the Fund at a 
recent meeting held on 10 November 2016. 

mailto:james.walton@shropshire.gov.uk


Pensions Committee, 25 November 2016:  ACTUARIAL VALUATION

Contact:  James Walton on (01743) 258915 2

5. Background

5.1 Members will be aware that Funds within the Local Government Pension 
Scheme are required to be actuarially valued every three years. The last 
valuation was undertaken as at 31 March 2013, at which time the funding 
level was determined to be 76% (i.e. the assets held to meet future liabilities 
were valued at 76% of those liabilities.) 

6. 2016 Valuation

6.1 The current valuation has been taken as at 31 March 2016 and a summary of 
the valuation results is attached at Appendix A. The 2016 funding level of 84% 
is in line with expectations. The Fund’s Actuary, John Livesey, from Mercer 
will present his valuation report to Committee. Officers have discussed the 
valuation outcome in detail with John Livesey and have agreed with the 
assumptions he has made within the report.

6.2 During the last three years the Fund’s value has increased by 21% from 
£1.235 billion to £1.494 billion. Over this period the liabilities of the Fund have 
increased from £1.618 billion to £1.772 billion.

6.3 As previously discussed, the results incorporate a change in the way the 
discount rate has been determined, by basing it on the long-term expected 
real returns on the Fund’s assets, with an appropriate margin for prudence.  
Short-term pay growth has been adjusted to reflect continuing pay restraint in 
the public sector.  The Actuary has used recent mortality experience to 
assess the most appropriate longevity assumptions in the 2016 valuation.  In 
view of the low take-up of the 50/50 option which is now available under the 
LGPS, the Actuary has assumed no members joining the Fund will take up 
this option in future (at the 2013 actuarial valuation a 10% take-up assumption 
was made).

7. Scheme Employers

7.1 The provisional results of the valuation exercise and the recommendations for 
contribution rates have been discussed with finance officers from scheme 
employers at a meeting on 10 November 2016. 

7.2 The Actuary is continuing to recommend that the results of the actuarial 
valuation are expressed as a percentage of salary for future service together 
with an £ amount for any deficit recovery and is aimed at helping employers to 
budget for the costs of deficit recovery.

7.3 The attached report highlights the revised employer contribution rates arising 
from the 2016 actuarial valuation at overall Fund level. Contribution rates for 
individual employers reflect their own circumstances. 

7.4 Members are requested to approve, with any comments, the Actuary’s 
recommendations. The position of the Fund will be monitored during the 
period up to the next valuation as at 31 March 2019. 



Pensions Committee, 25 November 2016:  ACTUARIAL VALUATION

Contact:  James Walton on (01743) 258915 3

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)
Actuarial Valuation 2013, Pension Committee, 27 November 2013

Cabinet Member
N/A

Local Member
N/A

Appendices

A- Summary of Results of Actuarial Valuation as at 31 March 2016





   

 

Mercer Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority 
Registered in England No. 984275 Registered Office: 1 Tower Place West, 
Tower Place, London EC3R 5BU  

SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND – APPENDIX A

Summary of Results of Actuarial Valuation as at 31 March 2016

1. Introduction

1.1 We have carried out our preliminary calculations on the actuarial valuation of the 
Fund as at 31 March 2016 and reported the results to the Administering Authority.  
The results are summarised in this note.

1.2 Subject to the Committee's approval and any discussions with individual 
employers, we will produce our formal report on the valuation in due course.

2. Valuation Approach and Assumptions

2.1 As for the 2013 actuarial valuation of the Fund, we have adopted a market-based 
approach.  Therefore, we have taken the Fund's assets at their market value on 
the valuation date.  The liabilities have been calculated in a consistent manner by 
discounting the benefits at market-related rates of interest.

2.2 There are three Fund-specific financial elements of the market value basis, 
namely:

 The expected rate of CPI inflation, including any adjustments due to current 
market circumstances.

 The extent to which we expect the return on the Fund's investments to exceed 
these assumed levels of CPI inflation (the "real discount rate / rate of return").

 The expected rate of Pensionable Pay increases in excess of inflation ("real 
Pensionable Pay growth").

2.3 We have assumed:

 A 2.35% per annum (pre and post-retirement) real discount rate for past 
service.  This is consistent with the corresponding assumption at the 2013 
valuation.  This is based on the Fund’s long term investment strategy and long 
term expectations of the performance of different asset classes, and includes 
an appropriate degree of prudence.  



 
Page 2

   

 For future service the assumption is a real discount rate of 2.75% per annum 
above CPI. The comparable assumption at the 2013 valuation was 3.0% per 
annum above CPI.

 Pay growth of 1% per annum for the first four years, reverting to a long-term 
real pensionable pay growth of 1.5% per annum above CPI thereafter. The 
long-term pay growth assumption is consistent with that used in the 2013 
valuation.  (In the 2013 valuation we also made an allowance for the known 
short-term pay freeze for public sector employers.)

 CPI inflation of 1.0% below market-implied RPI inflation, the same as at 2013.

2.4 The main financial assumptions adopted are therefore as follows:

Past Service
% pa

Future Service
% pa

- Investment return (pre-retirement) 4.55 4.95

- Investment return (post-retirement) 4.55 4.95

- Salary inflation 3.7* 3.7

- Pension increases 2.2 2.2

*For past service it is assumed that pay will increase at 1% p.a. for first four years, before reverting to 
the long term assumption of 3.7% pa.

2.5 Some changes have been made to the non-financial assumptions adopted in the 
previous valuation.  We have carried out investigations into the mortality, 
incapacity/ill health retirements and proportions married experience of Mercer’s 
local authority client funds, and the Shropshire Fund in particular.  We have 
incorporated the results of those investigations into our actuarial valuation 
calculations.  

2.6 As in the previous valuation, no advance allowance for early retirements (other 
than in ill-health) has been included in our calculations. Such retirements will be 
funded by additional payments (on top of the recommended employer’s 
contribution rate) as and when they occur.

3. Valuation Results

3.1 The position relating to past service liabilities of the Fund as a whole is 
summarised as follows:

£ million

Market value of assets 1,494

Value of benefits in respect of

- current active members
- preserved (deferred) pensioners
- pensioners, widow(er)s and dependants

538
385
849

Total accrued liabilities 1,772

Past service deficit 278

Funding level 84%



 
Page 3

   

The previous valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2013 disclosed a past service 
deficit of £383m.  The current valuation at 31 March 2016 discloses a past service 
deficit of £278.  A reconciliation of the deficit at 2013 to the 2016 position, taking 
account of the various factors that can impact on the funding level, is set out below.

Analysis of past service shortfall (£m)

3.2 The Common Contribution Rate for future service (ignoring the past service deficit) 
is 14.7% of pensionable salaries (14.0% of pensionable salaries at the 2013 
valuation). The increase in Common Contribution Rate is largely due to the 
changes in financial assumptions and membership profile, offset slightly by the 
changes to the demographic assumptions.

3.3 The deficit disclosed needs to be recovered by increasing employer contributions 
above the Common Contribution Rate.  The deficit recovery period for the whole 
Fund position is 16 years (see 3.4 for further comments on deficit recovery periods 
for individual employers).  The additional amount needed to recover the deficit over 
this period is £18.6m in 2017/18, increasing each year by 3.7% (the equivalent £ 
figure at the 2013 actuarial valuation was £19.2m in 2017/18, increasing at 4.1% 
p.a.).

3.4 The contribution rates for individual employers reflect their own circumstances.  
The default deficit recovery period for individual employers is 16 years. However, in 
most cases an employers recovery period will be the period adopted for the 2013 
valuation reduced by three years, leading to recovery periods ranging  from 16 
years to 22 years for most employers (although employers that did not accept new 
Fund entrants typically had a shorter recovery period).  

3.5 Where an employer in deficit would otherwise see a reduction in total contributions, 
their deficit recovery period will instead be reduced such that their total 
contributions (for the year 2017/18) are in line with those expected under the 2013 
plan.  



 
Page 4

   

3.7 It is the intention that in general the 2016 valuation target rates are payable in full 
from 1 April 2017. Phasing of any increases may be considered in special 
circumstances but is subject to consent from the Administering Authority.

3.8 The position of the Fund should be kept under regular review during the period to 
the next formal actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2019.

Mercer Limited
November 2016

This paper is addressed to Shropshire Council as Administering Authority of the Shropshire County Pension Fund on the 
understanding that:

 The paper and its observations and conclusions are based on scheme information provided by third parties. No 
representation or warranty, express or implied, is made or given by Mercer as to the accuracy or completeness of the 
information obtained from non-Mercer sources. Whilst reasonable attempts have been made by Mercer to ensure that the 
information and data has been obtained from reliable and up-to-date sources, Mercer has not conducted any verification as 
to whether the information and data from third party sources is true, accurate or complete. Mercer accepts no responsibility 
or liability (including for indirect, consequential or incidental damages) for any error, omission or inaccuracy in such 
information.

 No person other than the Administering Authority may use or rely on this report without Mercer’s prior written consent. 
Mercer does not owe a duty of care or other liability in respect of this paper to any person other than the Administering 
Authority nor does Mercer accept liability of the Administering Authority if the report is used for any purpose other than that 
stated.

g:\eworking\ret\nw\lg - shropshire council\pension scheme\valuation\2013 valuation\12 - delivery - results\ots_ca_summary of 2013 valuation results.docx



Committee and Date

Pensions Committee

25 November 2016

10 am

Item

11
Public

FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT

Responsible Officer Justin Bridges
e-mail: justin.bridges@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:  (01743) 

252072
Fax  (01743) 
255901

1. Summary

1.1 The report informs Members of the requirement to publish an updated 
Funding Strategy Statement. It sets out the draft Funding Strategy Statement 
which forms the basis of the 2016 Actuarial Valuation.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to note the updated draft Funding Strategy Statement, 
the final document will require approval at the next Pension Committee in 
March following the consultation period with employers. 

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal
3.1 The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the       

provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.

3.2 There are no direct environmental, equalities or climate change 
consequences arising from this report.

3.3 Regular monitoring against published Funding Strategy Statement will give 
early warning of areas of difficulty.

4. Financial Implications
4.1 There are no financial implications to consider in this report as the value of the 

fund does not affect the resources of the Council. 

mailto:justin.bridges@shropshire.gov.uk


Pensions Committee, 25 November 2016:  FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT

Contact:  Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072 2

5. Background

5.1 The requirement for LGPS administering authorities to prepare a Funding 
Strategy Statement was brought in under the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (England and Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2004.  

5.2 The Shropshire Fund first produced a Funding Strategy Statement in 2004. 
This Statement was revised in 2014 following the last actuarial valuation. The 
Statement outlines the basis on which the actuarial valuation of the Fund is 
conducted. It is now necessary to update the Funding Strategy Statement for 
the 2016 actuarial valuation and consult with employers.

5.3 The draft Funding Strategy Statement has been prepared in accordance with 
Regulation 58 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 
(as amended) and guidance issued by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 

6. Purpose of the Funding Strategy Statement

6.1 The Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) aims to;-

 establish a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will 
identify how employers’ pension liabilities are best met going forward 
by taking a prudent longer-term view of funding those liabilities;

 establish contributions at a level to “secure the solvency” of the pension 
fund and the “long term cost efficiency”; and

 to have regard to the desirability of maintaining as nearly constant a 
primary rate of contribution as possible.

6.2 The FSS applies to the Fund as a whole whilst at the same time recognising 
that there will be conflicting objectives which need to be reconciled. The FSS 
is written and implemented by the administering authority. The position of 
individual employers is reflected in the FSS but it is a single strategy for the 
Fund as a whole. In recognising the position of individual employers in a 
single strategy statement the FSS supports the long term sustainability of the 
pension fund. 

7 Consultation and Publication

7.1 The preparation of the Statement has run in parallel with the 2016 actuarial 
valuation. In consultation with Mercer, officers have updated the FSS to 
incorporate the latest valuation assumptions. A copy of the draft Funding 
Strategy Statement (FSS) is attached at Appendix A. 

7.2 In preparing the FSS the Administering Authority is required to consult with 
participating employers. Employers were updated on the content of the draft 
Funding Strategy Statement at the recent Employers Meeting on 10 



Pensions Committee, 25 November 2016:  FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT

Contact:  Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072 3

November 2016.  All employers have been sent a draft of the updated FSS 
and asked for comments back by the 8 December 2016. 

7.3 Members are asked to note the updated FSS. Once the consultation period is 
over the final document will go to the next Pension Committee for approval in 
March. Following approval copies will be distributed electronically to 
employers, investment managers, independent advisors and trade unions 
representing contributors. It will also be available on the website. 

8. Monitoring and Review

8.1 The FSS must be reviewed formally at least every three years at the time of 
the triennial valuation. The FSS will be monitored in the inter-valuation period. 
It will be revised and published to reflect any material change in policy or to 
the Statement of Investment Principles. Scheme employers will be consulted 
regarding any changes.   

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)
Pensions Committee, 20 March 2014, Funding Strategy Statement.

Cabinet Member
N/A

Local Member
N/A

Appendices
A – Draft Funding Strategy Statement 





DRAFT 
FUNDING STRATEGY 
STATEMENT
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION 
FUND

NOVEMBER 2016

Shropshire Council

This Funding Strategy Statement has been prepared by Shropshire Council (the Administering 
Authority) to set out the funding strategy for the Shropshire County Pension Fund (the “Fund”), in 
accordance with Regulation 58 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as 
amended) and guidance issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA). 



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D  -  F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T  

i

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Ensuring that the Shropshire County Pension Fund (the “Fund”) has sufficient assets to meet its 
pension liabilities in the long term is the fiduciary responsibility of the Administering Authority 
(Shropshire Council). The Funding Strategy adopted by the Shropshire County Pension Fund will 
therefore be critical in achieving this.

The purpose of this Funding Strategy Statement (“FSS”) is to set out a clear and transparent 
funding strategy that will identify how each Fund employer’s pension liabilities are to be met going 
forward.  

The details contained in this Funding Strategy Statement will have a financial 
and operational impact on all participating employers in the Shropshire 
County Pension Fund.  
It is imperative therefore that each existing or potential employer is aware of 
the details contained in this statement.  

Given this, and in accordance with governing legislation, all interested parties connected with the 
Shropshire County Pension Fund have been consulted and given opportunity to comment prior to 
this Funding Strategy Statement being finalised and adopted.   This statement takes into 
consideration all comments and feedback received.

THE FUND’S  OBJECTIVE
The Administering Authority’s long term objective is for the Fund to achieve a 100% 
solvency level over a reasonable time period and then maintain sufficient assets in order 
for it to pay all benefits arising as they fall due.   This objective will be considered on an 
employer specific level where appropriate.

The general principle adopted by the Fund is that the assumptions used, taken as a whole, will be 
chosen sufficiently prudently for pensions already in payment to continue to be paid, and to reflect 
the commitments that will arise from members’ accrued pension rights.  

The funding strategy set out in this document has been developed alongside the Fund’s 
investment strategy on an integrated basis taking into account the overall financial and 
demographic risks inherent in the Fund.  The funding strategy includes appropriate margins to 
allow for the possibility of events turning out worse than expected.   Individual employer results will 
also have regard to their covenant strength and the investment strategy applied to the asset shares 
of those employers.

SOLVENCY AND LONG TERM COST EFF IC IENCY
Each employer’s contributions are set at such a level to achieve full solvency in a 
reasonable timeframe.  Solvency is defined as a level where the Fund’s liabilities i.e. 
benefit payments can be reasonably met as they arise. 

Employer contributions are also set in order to achieve long term cost efficiency. Long term cost-
efficiency implies that contributions must not be set at a level that is likely to give rise to additional 
costs in the future. For example, deferring costs to the future would be likely to result in those costs 



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D  -  F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T  

i i

being greater overall than if they were provided for at the appropriate time. Equally, the FSS must 
have regard to the desirability of maintaining as nearly constant a primary rate of contribution as 
possible.

When formulating the funding strategy, the Administering Authority has taken into account these 
key objectives and also considered the implications of the requirements under Section 13(4)(c) of 
the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.  As part of these requirements the Government Actuary’s 
Department (GAD) must, following an actuarial valuation, report on whether the rate of employer 
contributions to the Fund is set at an appropriate level to ensure the “solvency” of the pension fund 
and “long term cost efficiency" of the Local Government Pension Scheme (the “LGPS”) so far as 
relating to the Fund. 

DEF IC IT  RECOVERY PLAN AND CONTRIBUT IONS
As the solvency level of the Fund is 84% at the valuation date i.e. the assets of the Fund 
are less than the liabilities, a deficit recovery plan needs to be implemented such that 
additional contributions are paid into the Fund to meet the shortfall.

Deficit contributions paid to the Fund by each employer will be expressed as £s amounts (flat or 
increasing year on year) and it is the Fund’s objective that any funding deficit is eliminated as 
quickly as the participating employers can reasonably afford given other competing cost pressures.  
This may result in some flexibility in recovery periods by employer which would be at the sole 
discretion of the Administering Authority.  The recovery periods will be set by the Fund, although 
employers will be free to select any shorter deficit recovery period if they wish.  Employers may, in 
certain circumstances at the discretion of the Administering Authority, also elect to make 
prepayments of contributions which could result in a cash saving over the valuation certificate 
period.

The objective is to recover any deficit over a reasonable timeframe, and this will be periodically 
reviewed. Subject to affordability considerations a key principle will be to maintain the contributions 
at the expected monetary levels from the preceding valuation (including any indexation in deficit 
payments over the recovery period).  Full details are set out in this FSS.

The target recovery period for the Fund as a whole is 16 years at this valuation which is 3 years 
shorter than the target recovery period from the previous valuation. Subject to affordability and 
other considerations individual employer recovery periods would also be expected to reduce by 3 
years at this valuation.  

Where there is an increase in contributions required at this valuation the employer may, at the 
Administering Authority’s discretion, be permitted to step-up their total contributions over a period 
of 3 years.  

ACTUARIAL  ASSUMPTIONS
The actuarial assumptions used for assessing the funding position of the Fund and the 
individual employers, the “Primary” contribution rate, and any contribution variations due 
to underlying surpluses or deficits (i.e. the “Secondary” rate) are set out in an Appendix 

to this FSS.

The discount rate in excess of CPI inflation (the “real discount rate”) has been derived based on 
the expected return on the Fund’s assets allowing for the long term strategy set out in its 



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D  -  F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T  

i i i

Investment Strategy Statement (ISS).  When assessing the appropriate prudent discount rate, 
consideration has been given to the level of expected asset returns in excess of CPI inflation (i.e. 
the rate at which the benefits in the LGPS generally increase each year). It is proposed at this 
valuation the real return over CPI inflation for determining the past service liabilities is 2.35% per 
annum and for determining the future service (“Primary”) contribution rates is 2.75% per annum. 

Where warranted by an employer’s circumstances, the Administering Authority retains the 
discretion to apply a discount rate based on a lower risk investment strategy for that employer to 
protect the Fund as a whole.  Such cases will be determined by the Section 151 Officer and 
reported to the Committee.

The demographic assumptions are based on the Fund Actuary’s bespoke analysis for the Fund, 
also taking into account the experience of the wider LGPS where relevant.

EMPLOYER ASSET  SHARES 
The Fund is a multi-employer pension Fund that is not formally unitised and so 
individual employer asset shares are calculated at each actuarial valuation.  This 
means it is necessary to make some approximations in the timing of cashflows and 

allocation of investment returns when deriving each employer’s asset share.  

At each review, cashflows into and out of the Fund relating to each employer, any movement of 
members between employers within the Fund, along with investment return earned on the asset 
share, are allowed for when calculating asset shares at each valuation.  

Other adjustments are also made on account of the funding positions of orphan bodies which fall to 
be met by all other active employers in the Fund.

FUND POL IC IES
In addition to the information/approaches required by overarching guidance and 
Regulation, this statement also summarises the Fund’s practice and policies in a 
number of key areas:

1. Covenant assessment and monitoring
An employer’s financial covenant underpins its legal obligation and crucially the ability to meet its 
financial responsibilities to the Fund now and in the future.  The strength of covenant to the Fund 
effectively underwrites the risks to which the Fund is exposed.  These risks include underfunding, 
longevity, investment and market forces.

The strength of employer covenant can be subject to substantial variation over relatively short 
periods of time and, as such, regular monitoring and assessment is vital to the overall risk 
management and governance of the Fund. The employers’ covenants will be assessed and 
monitored objectively in a proportionate manner, and an employer’s ability to meet their obligations 
in the short and long term will be considered when determining its funding strategy.  

After the valuation, the Fund will continue to monitor employers’ covenants in conjunction with their 
funding positions over the inter-valuation period.   This will enable the Fund to anticipate and pre-
empt any material issues arising and thus adopt a proactive approach in partnership with the 
employer. 



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D  -  F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T  

i v

2. Admitting employers to the Fund
Various types of employers are permitted to join the LGPS under certain circumstances, and the 
conditions upon which their entry to the Fund is based and the approach taken is determined by 
the Fund’s admission policy.  Examples of new employers include:

 Fund Employers 
 Designated bodies - those that are permitted to join if they pass a resolution
 Admission bodies - usually arising as a result of an outsourcing or a transfer to an entity that 

provides some form of public service and their funding primarily derives from local or central 
government.

Certain employers may be required to provide a guarantee or alternative security before entry will 
be allowed, in accordance with the Regulations and Fund policies.

3. Termination policy for employers exiting the Fund
When an employer ceases to participate within the Fund, it becomes an exiting employer under the 
Regulations.   The Fund is then required to obtain an actuarial valuation of that employer’s 
liabilities in respect of the benefits of the exiting employer’s current and former employees, along 
with a termination contribution certificate.

Where there is no guarantor who would subsume the liabilities of the exiting employer, the Fund’s 
policy is that a discount rate linked to government bond yields and a more prudent longevity 
assumption is used for assessing liabilities on termination. Any exit payments due should be paid 
immediately although instalment plans will be considered by the Administering Authority on a case 
by case basis.  The Administering Authority also reserves the right to modify this approach on a 
case by case basis if circumstances warrant it.

4. Insurance arrangements
The Fund may consider whether ill health retirement costs can be insured either through a third 
party insurer or by setting up an internal captive insurance arrangement which pools these risks for 
eligible employers.  If such an arrangement is implemented the relevant employer contribution 
rates will be adjusted accordingly.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

5

CONTENTS

Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................... i

Introduction ......................................................................................................................................6

Purpose of FSS in policy terms ......................................................................................................8

Aims and purpose of the Fund .......................................................................................................9

Responsibilities of the key parties ...............................................................................................10

Solvency funding target ................................................................................................................12

Link to investment policy and the Investment strategy statement (ISS) ..................................15

Identification of risks and counter-measures .............................................................................17

Monitoring and review ...................................................................................................................20

APPENDICES

A - ACTUARIAL METHOD AND ASSUMPTIONS 

B - EMPLOYER DEFICIT RECOVERY PLANS

C - GLOSSARY OF TERMS

 



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

6

1
INTRODUCTION

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013  (as amended) (“the 2013 
Regulations”) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and 
Amendment) Regulations 2014 (“the 2014 Transitional Regulations”) (collectively; “the 
Regulations”) provide the statutory framework from which the Administering Authority is required to 
prepare a Funding Strategy Statement (FSS). The key requirements for preparing the FSS can be 
summarised as follows:

 After consultation with all relevant interested parties involved with the Shropshire County 
Pension Fund (the “Fund”), the Administering Authority will prepare and publish their funding 
strategy;

 In preparing the FSS, the Administering Authority must have regard to:
 the guidance issued by CIPFA for this purpose; and
 the Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) for the Fund published under Regulation 12 of the 

Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 
2016 (as amended);

 The FSS must be revised and published whenever there is a material change in either the 
policy set out in the FSS or the ISS.

BENEF ITS
The benefits provided by the Fund are specified in the governing legislation contained in the 
Regulations referred to above.  Benefits payable under the Fund are guaranteed by statute and 
thereby the pensions promise is secure for members. The FSS addresses the issue of managing 
the need to fund those benefits over the long term, whilst at the same time facilitating scrutiny and 
accountability through improved transparency and disclosure.

The Fund is a defined benefit arrangement with principally final salary related benefits from 
contributing members up to 1 April 2014 and Career Average Revalued Earnings (“CARE”) 
benefits earned thereafter.  There is also a “50:50 Scheme Option”, where members can elect to 
accrue 50% of the full Fund benefits in relation to the member only and pay 50% of the normal 
member contribution.

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUT IONS
The required levels of employee contributions are specified in the Regulations.  Employer 
contributions are determined in accordance with the Regulations (which require that an actuarial 
valuation is completed every three years by the actuary, including a rates and adjustments 
certificate specifying the “primary” and “secondary” rate of the employer’s contribution).

PRIMARY RATE
The “Primary rate” for an employer is the contribution rate required to meet the cost of the future 
accrual of benefits, ignoring any past service surplus or deficit, but allowing for any employer-
specific circumstances, such as its membership profile, the funding strategy adopted for that 
employer, the actuarial method used and/or the employer’s covenant.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

7

The Primary rate for the whole fund is the weighted average (by payroll) of the individual 
employers’ Primary rates.

SECONDARY RATE
The “Secondary rate” is an adjustment to the Primary rate to arrive at the total rate of contribution 
each employer is required to pay.   The Secondary rate may be expressed as a percentage 
adjustment to the Primary rate, and/or a cash adjustment in each of the three years beginning 1 

April in the year following the actuarial valuation.

Secondary rates for the whole fund in each of the three years shall also be disclosed.  These will 
be the calculated weighted average based on the whole fund payroll in respect of percentage rates 
and the total amount in respect of cash adjustments.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

8

2
PURPOSE OF FSS IN POLICY TERMS

Funding is the making of advance provision to meet the cost of accruing benefit promises. 
Decisions taken regarding the approach to funding will therefore determine the rate or pace at 
which this advance provision is made. Although the Regulations specify the fundamental principles 
on which funding contributions should be assessed, implementation of the funding strategy is the 
responsibility of the Administering Authority, acting on the professional advice provided by the 
actuary.

The Administering Authority’s long term objective is for the Fund to achieve a 100% solvency level 
over a reasonable time period and then maintain sufficient assets in order for it to pay all benefits 
arising as they fall due.  

The purpose of this Funding Strategy Statement is therefore:

 to establish a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will identify how employers’ 
pension liabilities are best met going forward by taking a prudent longer-term view of funding 
those liabilities;

 to establish contributions at a level to “secure the solvency” of the pension fund and the “long 
term cost efficiency”, 

 to have regard to the desirability of maintaining as nearly constant a primary rate of contribution 
as possible. 

The intention is for this strategy to be both cohesive and comprehensive for the Fund as a whole, 
recognising that there will be conflicting objectives which need to be balanced and reconciled. 
Whilst the position of individual employers must be reflected in the statement, it must remain a 
single strategy for the Administering Authority to implement and maintain.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

9

3
AIMS AND PURPOSE OF THE FUND

THE A IMS OF  THE FUND ARE TO:

 manage employers’ liabilities effectively and ensure that sufficient resources are available to 
meet all liabilities as they fall due

 enable employer contribution rates to be kept at a reasonable and affordable cost to the 
taxpayers, scheduled, resolution and admitted bodies, while achieving and maintaining fund 
solvency and long term cost efficiency, which should be assessed in light of the profile of the 
Fund now and in the future due to sector changes

 maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk parameters taking into account 
the above aims.

THE PURPOSE OF  THE FUND IS  TO:

 receive monies in respect of contributions, transfer values and investment income, and
 pay out monies in respect of Fund benefits, transfer values, costs, charges and expenses as 

defined in the 2013 Regulations, the 2014 Transitional Regulations and the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

1 0

4
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE KEY PARTIES

The efficient and effective management of the Fund can only be achieved if all parties exercise 
their statutory duties and responsibilities conscientiously and diligently. The key parties for the 
purposes of the FSS are the Administering Authority (and, in particular the Pensions Committee 
the individual employers and the Fund Actuary and details of their roles are set out below.   Other 
parties required to play their part in the fund management process are bankers, custodians, 
investment managers, auditors and legal, investment and governance advisors, along with the 
Local Pensions Board created under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.     

KEY  PARTIES  TO THE FSS

The Administering Authority should:

 operate the pension fund
 collect employer and employee contributions, investment income and other amounts due to the 

pension fund as stipulated in the Regulations
 pay from the pension fund the relevant entitlements as stipulated in the Regulations
 invest surplus monies in accordance the Regulations
 ensure that cash is available to meet liabilities as and when they fall due
 take measures as set out in the Regulations to safeguard the fund against the consequences of 

employer default
 manage the valuation process in consultation with the Fund’s actuary
 prepare and maintain a FSS and an ISS, both after proper consultation with interested parties, 

and
 monitor all aspects of the Fund’s performance and funding, amending the FSS/ISS as 

necessary
 effectively manage any potential conflicts of interest arising from its dual role as both fund 

administrator and a Fund employer, and 
 establish, support and monitor a Local Pension Board (LPB) as required by the Public Service 

Pensions Act 2013, the Regulations and the Pensions Regulator’s relevant Code of Practice.

The Individual Employer should:

 deduct contributions from employees’ pay correctly after determining the appropriate employee 
contribution rate (in accordance with the Regulations)

 pay all contributions, including their own as determined by the actuary, promptly by the due date
 develop a policy on certain discretions and exercise those discretions as permitted within the 

regulatory framework
 make additional contributions in accordance with agreed arrangements in respect of, for 

example, augmentation of Fund benefits, early retirement strain, and
 have regard to the Pensions Regulator’s focus on data quality and comply with any requirement 

set by the Administering Authority in this context, and 
 notify the Administering Authority promptly of any changes to membership which may affect 

future funding.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

1 1

The Fund Actuary should:

 prepare valuations including the setting of employers’ contribution rates at a level to ensure fund 
solvency after agreeing assumptions with the Administering Authority and having regard to their 
FSS and the Regulations

 prepare advice and calculations in connection with bulk transfers and individual benefit-related 
matters such as pension strain costs, ill health retirement costs etc 

 provide advice and valuations on the termination of admission agreements
 provide advice to the Administering Authority on bonds and other forms of security against the 

financial effect on the Fund of employer default
 assist the Administering Authority in assessing whether employer contributions need to be 

revised between valuations as required by the Regulations
 advise on funding strategy, the preparation of the FSS and the inter-relationship between the 

FSS and the ISS, and
 ensure the Administering Authority is aware of any professional guidance or other professional 

requirements which may be of relevance to the Fund Actuary’s role in advising the Fund.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

1 2

5
SOLVENCY FUNDING TARGET

Securing the “solvency” and “long term cost efficiency” is a regulatory requirement. To meet these 
requirements the Administering Authority’s long term funding objective is for the Fund to achieve 
and then maintain sufficient assets to cover 100% of projected accrued liabilities (the “funding 
target”) assessed on an ongoing past service basis including allowance for projected final pay 
where appropriate. In the long term, an employer’s total contribution rate would ultimately revert to 
its Primary rate of contribution.

SOLVENCY AND LONG TERM EFF IC IENCY
Each employer’s contributions are set at such a level to achieve full solvency in a reasonable 
timeframe.  Solvency is defined as a level where the Fund’s liabilities i.e. benefit payments can be 
reasonably met as they arise. 

Employer contributions are also set in order to achieve long term cost efficiency. Long term cost-
efficiency implies that contributions must not be set at a level that is likely to give rise to additional 
costs in the future. For example, deferring costs to the future would be likely to result in those costs 
being greater overall than if they were provided for at the appropriate time. 

When formulating the funding strategy the Administering Authority has taken into account these 
key objectives and also considered the implications of the requirements under Section 13(4)(c) of 
the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.  As part of these requirements the Government Actuary’s 
Department (GAD) must, following an actuarial valuation, report on whether the rate of employer 
contributions to the Fund is set at an appropriate level to ensure the “solvency” of the pension fund 
and “long term cost efficiency" of the LGPS so far as relating to the Fund.

DETERMINAT ION OF  THE SOLVENCY FUNDING TARGET AND DEF IC IT  
RECOVERY PLAN
The principal method and assumptions to be used in the calculation of the funding target are set out 
in Appendix A.  The Employer Deficit Recovery Plans are set out in Appendix B.

Underlying these assumptions are the following two tenets:

 that the Fund is expected to continue for the foreseeable future; and
 favourable investment performance can play a valuable role in achieving adequate funding over 

the longer term.

This allows the Fund to take a longer term view when assessing the contribution requirements for 
certain employers.  

In considering this the Administering Authority, based on the advice of the Actuary, will consider if 
this results in a reasonable likelihood that the funding plan will be successful potentially taking into 
account any changes in funding after the valuation date up to the finalisation of the valuation by 31 
March 2017 at the latest.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

1 3

As part of each valuation separate employer contribution rates are assessed by the Fund Actuary 
for each participating employer or group of employers. These rates are assessed taking into account 
the experience and circumstances of each employer, following a principle of no cross-subsidy 
between the distinct employers and employer groups in the Fund. 

The Administering Authority, following consultation with the participating employers, has adopted the 
following objectives for setting the individual employer contribution rates arising from the 2016 
actuarial valuation:

 The Fund does not believe it appropriate for contribution reductions to apply compared to the 
existing funding plan (allowing for indexation where applicable) where deficits remain unless 
there is compelling reason to do so.  

 Where warranted by an employer’s circumstances, the Administering Authority retains the 
discretion to apply a discount rate based on a lower risk investment strategy for that 
employer to protect the Fund as a whole.  Such cases will be determined by the Section 
151 Officer and reported to the Committee.

 Subject to consideration of affordability, as a general rule the deficit recovery period will 
reduce by at least 3 years for employers at this valuation when compared to the preceding 
valuation. This is to target full solvency over a similar (or shorter) time horizon.  Employers 
will have the freedom to adopt a recovery plan on the basis of a shorter period if they so wish. 
Subject to affordability considerations and other factors, a bespoke period may be applied in 
respect of particular employers where the Administering Authority considers this to be 
warranted (see Deficit Recovery Plan in Appendix B).  These principles have resulted in an 
target recovery period of 16 years being adopted across all Fund employers.

 Individual employer contributions will be expressed and certified as two separate elements:
o the Primary rate: a percentage of pensionable payroll in respect of the cost of the 

future accrual of benefits 
o the Secondary rate: a schedule of lump sum monetary amounts over 2017/20 in 

respect of an employer’s surplus or deficit 

For any employer, the total contributions they are actually required to pay in any one year 
is the sum of the Primary and Secondary rates (subject to an overall minimum of zero). 
Both elements are subject to further review from April 2020 based on the results of the 
2019 actuarial valuation.

 Where increases in employer contributions are required from 1 April 2017, following 
completion of the 2016 actuarial valuation, if the Administering Authority agrees then the 
increase from the rates of contribution payable in the year 2017/18 may be implemented in 
steps, over a maximum period of 3 years. 

 On the cessation of an employer’s participation in the Fund, in accordance with the 
Regulations, the Fund Actuary will be asked to make a termination assessment.  Any deficit 
in the Fund in respect of the employer will be due to the Fund as a termination contribution, 
unless it is agreed by the Administering Authority and the other parties involved that the 
assets and liabilities relating to the employer will transfer within the Fund to another 
participating employer. 



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

1 4

 In all cases the Administering Authority reserves the right to apply a different approach at its 
sole discretion, taking into account the risk associated with an employer in proportion to the 
Fund as a whole.  Any employer affected will be notified separately.

FUNDING FOR NON- ILL  HEALTH EARLY RET IREMENT COSTS
Employers are required to meet all costs of early retirement strain by immediate capital payments 
into the Fund.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

1 5

7
LINK TO INVESTMENT POLICY AND THE 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT ( ISS)

The results of the 2016 valuation show the liabilities to be 84% covered by the current assets, with 
the funding deficit of 16% being covered by future deficit contributions.

In assessing the value of the Fund’s liabilities in the valuation, allowance has been made for growth 
asset out-performance as described below, taking into account the investment strategy adopted by 
the Fund, as set out in the ISS.

It is not possible to construct a portfolio of investments which produces a stream of income exactly 
matching the expected liability outgo.  However, it is possible to construct a portfolio which 
represents the “minimum risk” investment position which would deliver a very high certainty of real 
returns above assumed CPI inflation.  Such a portfolio would consist of a mixture of long-term index-
linked, fixed interest gilts and possible swaps.

Investment of the Fund’s assets in line with this portfolio would minimise fluctuations in the Fund’s 
funding position between successive actuarial valuations.

If, at the valuation date, the Fund had been invested in this portfolio, then in carrying out this valuation 
it would not be appropriate to make any allowance for growth assets out-performance or any 
adjustment to market implied inflation assumption due to supply/demand distortions in the bond 
markets.  This would result in real return versus CPI inflation of nil per annum at the valuation date.  
On this basis of assessment, the assessed value of the Fund’s liabilities at the valuation would have 
been significantly higher, resulting in a funding level of 51%.

Departure from a minimum risk investment strategy, in particular to include growth assets such as 
equities, gives a better prospect that the assets will, over time, deliver returns in excess of CPI 
inflation and reduce the contribution requirements. The target solvency position of having sufficient 
assets to meet the Fund’s pension obligations might in practice therefore be achieved by a range of 
combinations of funding plan, investment strategy and investment performance. 

The current strategy is:



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

1 6

The investment strategy and return expectations set out above equate to an overall best estimate 
average expected return of around 3.25% per annum in excess of CPI inflation.  For the purposes 
of setting funding strategy however, the Administering Authority believes that it is appropriate to 
take a margin for prudence on these return expectations. 



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

1 7

8
IDENTIFICATION OF RISKS AND COUNTER-
MEASURES

The funding of defined benefits is by its nature uncertain. Funding of the Fund is based on both 
financial and demographic assumptions. These assumptions are specified in the actuarial valuation 
report. When actual experience is not in line with the assumptions adopted a surplus or shortfall will 
emerge at the next actuarial assessment and will require a subsequent contribution adjustment to 
bring the funding back into line with the target.

The Administering Authority has been advised by the Fund Actuary that the greatest risk to the 
funding level is the investment risk inherent in the predominantly equity based strategy, so that actual 
asset out-performance between successive valuations could diverge significantly from that assumed 
in the long term.

F INANCIAL
The financial risks are as follows:-

 Investment markets fail to perform in line with expectations

 Market outlook moves at variance with assumptions

 Investment Fund Managers fail to achieve performance targets over the longer term

 Asset re-allocations in volatile markets may lock in past losses

 Pay and price inflation significantly more or less than anticipated

 Future underperformance arising as a result of participating in the larger asset pooling vehicle.

Any increase in employer contribution rates (as a result of these risks), may in turn impact on the 
service delivery of that employer and their financial position.

In practice the extent to which these risks can be reduced is limited. However, the Fund’s asset 
allocation is kept under constant review and the performance of the investment managers is regularly 
monitored. 

DEMOGRAPHIC
The demographic risks are as follows:-

 Longevity horizon continues to expand

 Deteriorating pattern of early retirements (including those granted on the grounds of ill health)

 Unanticipated acceleration of the maturing of the Fund resulting in materially negative cashflows 
and shortening of liability durations 

 The level of take-up of the 50:50 option at a higher or lower level than built into the actuarial 
assumptions.

Increasing longevity is something which government policies, both national and local, are designed 
to promote. It does, however, result in a greater liability for pension funds.

Apart from the regulatory procedures in place to ensure that ill-health retirements are properly 
controlled, employing bodies should be doing everything in their power to minimise the 



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

1 8

number of ill-health retirements. Early retirements for reasons of redundancy and efficiency do 
not affect the solvency of the Fund because they are the subject of a direct charge.

With regards to increasing maturity (e.g. due to further cuts in workforce and/or restrictions on new 
employees accessing the Fund), the Administering Authority regularly monitors the position in terms 
of cashflow requirements and considers the impact on the investment strategy.  

INSURANCE OF  CERTAIN  BENEFITS
The contributions for any employer may be varied as agreed by the Actuary and Administering 
Authority to reflect any changes in contribution requirements as a result of any benefit costs being 
insured with a third party or internally within the Fund.  

REGULATORY
The key regulatory risks are as follows:-

 Changes to Regulations, e.g. changes to the benefits package, retirement age, potential new 
entrants to Fund, 

 Changes to national pension requirements and/or HMRC Rules

Membership of the LGPS is open to all local government staff and should be encouraged as a 
valuable part of the contract of employment. However, increasing membership does result in higher 
employer monetary costs. 

GOVERNANCE
The Fund has done as much as it believes it reasonably can to enable employing bodies and Fund 
members (via their representatives on the Local Pension Board) to make their views known to the 
Fund and to participate in the decision-making process. 

Governance risks are as follows:-

 The quality of membership data deteriorates materially due to breakdown in processes for 
updating the information resulting in liabilities being under or overstated

 Administering Authority unaware of structural changes in employer’s membership (e.g. large fall 
in employee numbers, large number of retirements) with the result that contribution rates are set 
at too low a level

 Administering Authority not advised of an employer closing to new entrants, something which 
would normally require an increase in contribution rates

 An employer ceasing to exist with insufficient funding or adequacy of a bond.  Where there is a 
guarantor body in place, any outstanding funding deficit that is not recovered from the outgoing 
employer / bond will need to be paid by the guarantor (or the assets and liabilities for the 
outgoing employer will need to be subsumed by the guarantor).  For cases where there is no 
guarantor or bond in place, any outstanding funding deficit that is not recovered from the 
outgoing employer will need to be subsumed by the Fund as a whole and spread across all 
employers. 

 Changes in the Committee membership.

For these risks to be minimised much depends on information being supplied to the Administering 
Authority by the employing bodies. Arrangements are strictly controlled and monitored, but in most 
cases the employer, rather than the Fund as a whole, bears the risk.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

1 9

9
MONITORING AND REVIEW

The Administering Authority has taken advice from the actuary in preparing this Statement, and has 
consulted with the employers participating in the Fund.

A full review of this Statement will occur no less frequently than every three years, to coincide with 
completion of a full actuarial valuation. Any review will take account of the current economic 
conditions and will also reflect any legislative changes.

The Administering Authority will monitor the progress of the funding strategy between full actuarial 
valuations. If considered appropriate, the funding strategy will be reviewed (other than as part of the 
triennial valuation process), for example, if there:

 has been a significant change in market conditions, and/or deviation in the progress of the 
funding strategy

 have been significant changes to the Fund membership, or LGPS benefits
 have been changes to the circumstances of any of the employing authorities to such an extent 

that they impact on or warrant a change in the funding strategy
 have been any significant special contributions paid into the Fund.

When monitoring the funding strategy, if the Administering Authority considers that any action is 
required, the relevant employing authorities will be contacted. In the case of admitted bodies, there 
is statutory provision for rates to be amended between valuations but it is unlikely that this power 
will be invoked other than in exceptional circumstances.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

2 0

APPENDIX A - ACTUARIAL 
METHOD AND ASSUMPTIONS

METHOD
The actuarial method to be used in the calculation of the solvency funding target is the Projected 
Unit method, under which the salary increases assumed for each member are projected until that 
member is assumed to leave active service by death, retirement or withdrawal from service. This 
method implicitly allows for new entrants to the Fund on the basis that the overall age profile of the 
active membership will remain stable. As a result, for those employers which are closed to new 
entrants, an alternative method is adopted, which makes advance allowance for the anticipated 
future ageing and decline of the current closed membership group potentially over the period of the 
rates and adjustments certificate. 

F INANCIAL  ASSUMPTIONS –  SOLVENCY FUNDING TARGET

Investment return (discount rate)
The discount rate has been derived based on the expected return on the Fund assets base on the 
long term strategy set out in the Investment Strategy Statement (ISS).  It includes appropriate 
margins for prudence.  When assessing the appropriate discount rate consideration has been given 
to the returns in excess of CPI inflation (as derived below). The discount rate at the valuation has 
been derived based on an assumed return of 2.35% per annum above CPI inflation i.e. a real return 
of 2.35% per annum, equating to a total discount rate of 4.55% per annum.  This real return will be 
reviewed from time to time based on the investment strategy, market outlook and the Fund’s overall 
risk metrics.

Where warranted by an employer’s circumstances, the Administering Authority retains the 
discretion to apply a discount rate based on a lower risk investment strategy for that employer to 
protect the Fund as a whole.   

Inflation (Consumer Prices Index)
The inflation assumption will be taken to be the investment market’s expectation for RPI inflation as 
indicated by the difference between yields derived from market instruments, principally conventional 
and index-linked UK Government gilts as at the valuation date, reflecting the profile and duration of 
the Fund’s accrued liabilities, but subject to the following two adjustments:

 an allowance for supply/demand distortions in the bond market is incorporated, and

 an adjustment due to retirement pensions being increased annually by the change in the 
Consumer Price Index rather than the Retail Price Index

The overall reduction to RPI inflation at the valuation date is 1.0% per annum.

Salary increases
In relation to benefits earned prior to 1 April 2014, the assumption for real salary increases (salary 
increases in excess of price inflation) will be determined by an allowance of 1.5% p.a. over the 
inflation assumption as described above.  This includes allowance for promotional increases.  In the 
shorter term, the long term salary increase assumption has been replaced by an assumption of 1.0% 



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

2 1

per annum for the period to 2019/20, reflecting expected short term pay restraint in the public sector 
over this period. 

Pension increases/Indexation of CARE benefits
Increases to pensions are assumed to be in line with the inflation (CPI) assumption described above. 
This is modified appropriately to reflect any benefits which are not fully indexed in line with the CPI 
(e.g. Guaranteed Minimum Pensions where the LGPS is not required to provide full indexation).

DEMOGRAPHIC  ASSUMPTIONS

Mortality/Life Expectancy
The mortality in retirement assumptions will be based on the most up-to-date information in relation 
to self-administered pension schemes published by the Continuous Mortality Investigation (CMI), 
making allowance for future improvements in longevity and the experience of the Fund.  The mortality 
tables used are set out below, with a loading reflecting Fund specific experience. The derivation of 
the mortality assumption is set out in a separate paper as supplied by the Actuary. Current members 
who retire on the grounds of ill health are assumed to exhibit average mortality equivalent to that for 
a good health retiree at an age 4 years older whereas for existing ill health retirees we assume this 
is at an age 3 years older.  For all members, it is assumed that the accelerated trend in longevity 
seen in recent years will continue in the longer term and as such, the assumptions build in a minimum 
level of longevity ‘improvement’ year on year in the future in line with the CMI projections with a long-
term improvement trend of 1.5% per annum.

The mortality before retirement has also been adjusted based on LGPS wide experience.

Commutation
It has been assumed that, on average, 50% of retiring members will take the maximum tax-free cash 
available at retirement and 50% will take the standard 3/80ths cash sum. The option which members 
have to commute part of their pension at retirement in return for a lump sum is a rate of £12 cash for 
each £1 p.a. of pension given up. 

Other Demographics
Following an analysis of Fund experience carried out by the Actuary, the incidence of ill health 
retirements, withdrawal rates and the proportions married/civil partnership assumption have been 
modified from the last valuation.  In addition, no allowance will be made for the future take-up of the 
50:50 option (an allowance of 10% of current and future members (by payroll) for certain employers 
was made at the last valuation).  Where any member has actually opted for the 50:50 scheme, this 
will be allowed for in the assessment of the rate for the next 3 years. Other assumptions are as per 
the last valuation.

Expenses
Expenses are met out the Fund, in accordance with the Regulations. This is allowed for by adding 
0.6% of pensionable pay to the contributions as required from participating employers. This addition 
is reassessed at each valuation. Investment expenses have been allowed for implicitly in determining 
the discount rates.

Discretionary Benefits
The costs of any discretion exercised by an employer in order to enhance benefits for a member 
through the Fund will be subject to additional contributions from the employer as required by the 



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

2 2

Regulations as and when the event occurs.  As a result, no allowance for such discretionary benefits 
has been made in the valuation 

METHOD AND ASSUMPTIONS USED IN  CALCULAT ING THE COST OF  
FUTURE ACCRUAL  (OR PRIMARY RATE)
The future service liabilities are calculated using the same assumptions as the funding target except 
that a different financial assumption for the discount rate is used.  A critical aspect here is that the 
Regulations state the desirability of keeping the “Primary Rate” (which is the future service rate) as 
stable as possible so this needs to be taken into account when setting the assumptions.

As future service contributions are paid in respect of benefits built up in the future, the FSR should 
take account of the market conditions applying at future dates, not just the date of the valuation, thus 
it is justifiable to use a slightly higher expected return from the investment strategy.  In addition the 
future liabilities for which these contributions will be paid have a longer average duration than the 
past service liabilities as they relate to active members only.  

The financial assumptions in relation to future service (i.e. the normal cost) are not specifically linked 
to investment conditions as at the valuation date itself, and are based on an overall assumed real 
discount rate of 2.75% per annum above the long term average assumption for consumer price 
inflation of 2.2% per annum, giving a total discount rate of 4.95% per annum. 

EMPLOYER ASSET  SHARES 
The Fund is a multi-employer pension Fund that is not formally unitised and so individual employer 
asset shares are calculated at each actuarial valuation.  This means it is necessary to make some 
approximations in the timing of cashflows and allocation of investment returns when deriving the 
employer asset share.  

In attributing the overall investment performance obtained on the assets of the Fund to each 
employer a pro-rata principle is adopted. This approach is effectively one of applying a notional 
individual employer investment strategy identical to that adopted for the Fund as a whole unless 
agreed otherwise between the employer and the Fund at the sole discretion of the Administering 
Authority.

At each review, cashflows into and out of the Fund relating to each employer, any movement of 
members between employers within the Fund, along with investment return earned on the asset 
share, are allowed for when calculating asset shares at each valuation.  

Other adjustments are also made on account of the funding positions of orphan bodies which fall to 
be met by all other active employers in the Fund.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

2 3

SUMMARY OF  KEY WHOLE FUND ASSUMPTIONS USED FOR 
CALCULAT ING FUNDING TARGET AND COST OF  FUTURE ACCRUAL  (THE 
“PR IMARY RATE” )  FOR THE 2016  ACTUARIAL  VALUAT ION

Life expectancy assumptions
The post retirement mortality tables adopted for this valuation, along with sample life expectancies, 
are set out below:

Base Table Improvements Adjustment (M / F)

Current pensioners:

Normal health S2PA CMI_2015 [1.5%] 95% / 83%

Ill-health S2PA CMI_2015 [1.5%] Normal health + 3 years

Dependants S2PMA / S2DFA CMI_2015 [1.5%] 115% / 93%

Future dependants S2PMA / S2DFA CMI_2015 [1.5%] 113% / 96

Current active / deferred:

Active normal health S2PA CMI_2015 [1.5%] 95% / 83%

Active ill-health S2PA CMI_2015 [1.5%] Normal health + 4 years

Deferred S2PA CMI_2015 [1.5%] 95% / 83%

Future dependants S2PMA / S2DFA CMI_2015 [1.5%] 113% / 96%

Other demographic assumptions are set out in the Actuary’s formal report.

Long-term yields
Market implied RPI inflation 3.2% p.a.

Solvency Funding Target financial 
assumptions

Investment return/Discount Rate 4.35% p.a.
CPI price inflation 2.2% p.a.
Long Term Salary increases 3.7% p.a.
Pension increases/indexation of CARE 
benefits 2.2% p.a.

Future service accrual financial 
assumptions

Investment return/Discount Rate 4.95% p.a.
CPI price inflation 2.2% p.a.
Long Term Salary increases 3.7% p.a.
Pension increases/indexation of CARE 
benefits 2.2% p.a.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

2 4

APPENDIX B – EMPLOYER 
DEFICIT RECOVERY PLANS
As the assets of the Fund are less than the liabilities at the effective date, a deficit recovery plan 
needs to be adopted such that additional contributions are paid into the Fund to meet the shortfall.

Deficit contributions paid to the Fund by each employer will be expressed as £s amounts and it is 
the Fund’s objective that any funding deficit is eliminated as quickly as the participating employers 
can reasonably afford based on the Administering Authority’s view of the employer’s covenant and 
risk to the Fund. 

Recovery periods will be set by the Fund on a consistent basis across employer categories where 
possible and communicated as part of the discussions with employers. This will determine the 
minimum contribution requirement and employers will be free to select any shorter deficit recovery 
period and higher contributions if they wish, including the option of prepaying the deficit 
contributions in one lump sum (either on annual basis or a one-off payment).  This will be reflected 
in the monetary amount requested via a reduction in overall £ deficit contributions payable.

The determination of the recovery periods is summarised in the table below:

Category Target Deficit Recovery 
Period Derivation

Fund Employers 16 years

Open Admitted Bodies 16 years

Determined by reducing the 
recovery period from the preceding 
valuation by at least 3 years and to 
ensure contributions do not reduce 
versus those expected from the 
existing plan.

Determined by reducing the 
recovery period from the preceding 
valuation by at least 3 years and to 
ensure contributions do not reduce 
versus those expected from the 
existing plan.

Closed Employers Minimum of 16 years and the future 
working lifetime of the membership

Determined by the future working 
life of the membership, and to 
ensure contributions do not reduce 
versus those expected from the 
existing plan.

Employers with a limited 
participation in the Fund

Determined on a case by case 
basis

Length of expected period of 
participation in the Fund

In determining the actual recovery period to apply for any particular employer or employer 
grouping, the Administering Authority may take into account some or all of the following factors:

 The size of the funding shortfall;  
 The business plans of the employer;  
 The assessment of the financial covenant of the Employer, and security of future income 

streams;  
 Any contingent security available to the Fund or offered by the Employer such as guarantor 

or bond arrangements, charge over assets, etc.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

2 5

The objective is to recover any deficit over a reasonable timeframe, and this will be periodically 
reviewed. Subject to affordability considerations a key principle will be to maintain the contributions 
at the expected monetary levels from the preceding valuation (allowing for any indexation in deficit 
payments over the recovery period).  

Other factors affecting the Employer Deficit Recovery Plans
As part of the process of agreeing funding plans with individual employers, the Administering 
Authority will consider the use of contingent assets and other tools such as bonds or guarantees 
that could assist employing bodies in managing the cost of their liabilities or could provide the Fund 
with greater security against outstanding liabilities.  All other things equal this could result in a 
longer recovery period being acceptable to the Administering Authority, although employers will still 
be expected to at least cover expected interest costs on the deficit.

It is acknowledged by the Administering Authority that, whilst posing a relatively low risk to the 
Fund as a whole, a number of smaller employers may be faced with significant contribution 
increases that could seriously affect their ability to function in the future.  The Administering 
Authority therefore would be willing to use its discretion to accept an evidenced based affordable 
level of contributions for the organisation for the three years 2017/2020.  Any application of this 
option is at the ultimate discretion of the Fund officers and Section 151 officer in order to effectively 
manage risk across the Fund. It will only be considered after the provision of the appropriate 
evidence as part of the covenant assessment and also the appropriate professional advice.

For those bodies identified as having a weaker covenant, the Administering Authority will need to 
balance the level of risk plus the solvency requirements of the Fund with the sustainability of the 
organisation when agreeing funding plans.  As a minimum, the annual deficit payment must meet 
the on-going interest costs to ensure, everything else being equal, that the deficit does not increase 
in monetary terms.

Notwithstanding the above, the Administering Authority, in consultation with the actuary, has also 
had to consider whether any exceptional arrangements should apply in particular cases.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

2 6

APPENDIX C - GLOSSARY

Actuarial Valuation: an investigation by an actuary into the ability of the Fund to meet its 
liabilities. For the LGPS the Fund Actuary will assess the funding level of each participating 
employer and agree contribution rates with the administering authority to fund the cost of new 
benefits and make good any existing deficits as set out in the separate Funding Strategy 
Statement. The asset value is based on market values at the valuation date.

Administering Authority: the council with a statutory responsibility for running the Fund and 
that is responsible for all aspects of its management and operation.

Admission bodies: A specific type of employer under the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(the “LGPS”) who do not automatically qualify for participation in the Fund but are allowed to join if 
they satisfy the relevant criteria set out in the Regulations. 

Benchmark: a measure against which fund performance is to be judged.

Best Estimate Assumption: an assumption where the outcome has a 50/50 chance of being 
achieved.

Bonds: loans made to an issuer (often a government or a company) which undertakes to repay 
the loan at an agreed later date. The term refers generically to corporate bonds or government 
bonds (gilts).

Career Average Revalued Earnings Scheme (CARE): with effect from 1 April 2014, 
benefits accrued by members in the LGPS take the form of CARE benefits. Every year members 
will accrue a pension benefit equivalent to 1/49th of their pensionable pay in that year. Each annual 
pension accrued receives inflationary increases (in line with the annual change in the Consumer 
Prices Index) over the period to retirement. 

CPI: acronym standing for “Consumer Prices Index”. CPI is a measure of inflation with a basket of 
goods that is assessed on an annual basis. The reference goods and services differ from those of 
RPI. These goods are expected to provide lower, less volatile inflation increases. Pension 
increases in the LGPS are linked to the annual change in CPI.

Covenant: the assessed financial strength of the employer. A strong covenant indicates a 
greater ability (and willingness) to pay for pension obligations in the long run. A weaker covenant 
means that it appears that the employer may have difficulties meeting its pension obligations in full 
over the longer term or affordability constraints in the short term.

Deficit: the extent to which the value of the Fund’s past service liabilities exceeds the value of 
the Fund’s assets. This relates to assets and liabilities built up to date, and ignores the future build-
up of pension (which in effect is assumed to be met by future contributions).

Deficit recovery period: the target length of time over which the current deficit is intended to 
be paid off. A shorter period will give rise to a higher annual contribution, and vice versa.

Discount Rate: the rate of interest used to convert a cash amount e.g. future benefit payments 
occurring in the future to a present value.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

2 7

Employer's Future Service Contribution Rate: the contribution rate payable by an 
employer, expressed as a % of pensionable pay, as being sufficient to meet the cost of new 
benefits being accrued by active members in the future. The cost will be net of employee 
contributions and will include an allowance for the expected level of administrative expenses.

Employing bodies: any organisation that participates in the LGPS, including admission bodies 
and Fund employers.

Equities: shares in a company which are bought and sold on a stock exchange. 

Fund / Scheme Employers: employers that have the statutory right to participate in the 
LGPS.  These organisations (set out in Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the 2013 Regulations) would not 
need to designate eligibility, unlike the Part 2 Fund Employers.   

Funding or solvency Level: the ratio of the value of the Fund’s assets and the value of the 
Fund’s liabilities expressed as a percentage.

Funding Strategy Statement: this is a key governance document that outlines how the 
administering authority will manage employer’s contributions and risks to the Fund.

Government Actuary's Department (GAD): the GAD is responsible for providing 
actuarial advice to public sector clients. GAD is a non-ministerial department of HM Treasury.

Guarantee / guarantor: a formal promise by a third party (the guarantor) that it will meet any 
pension obligations not met by a specified employer. The presence of a guarantor will mean, for 
instance, that the Fund can consider the employer’s covenant to be as strong as its guarantor’s. 

Investment Strategy: the long-term distribution of assets among various asset classes that 
takes into account the Funds objectives and attitude to risk. 

Letting employer: an employer that outsources part of its services/workforce to another 
employer, usually a contractor. The contractor will pay towards the LGPS benefits accrued by the 
transferring members, but ultimately the obligation to pay for these benefits will revert to the letting 
employer. 

Liabilities: the actuarially calculated present value of all benefit entitlements i.e. Fund cashflows 
of all members of the Fund, built up to date or in the future. The liabilities in relation to the benefit 
entitlements earned up to the valuation date are compared with the present market value of Fund 
assets to derive the deficit and funding/solvency level. Liabilities can be assessed on different set 
of actuarial assumptions depending on the purpose of the valuation.

LGPS: the Local Government Pension Scheme, a public sector pension arrangement put in place 
via Government Regulations, for workers in local government. These Regulations also dictate 
eligibility (particularly for Scheduled Bodies), members’ contribution rates, benefit calculations and 
certain governance requirements. 

Maturity: a general term to describe a Fund (or an employer’s position within a Fund) where the 
members are closer to retirement (or more of them already retired) and the investment time 
horizon is shorter. This has implications for investment strategy and, consequently, funding 
strategy.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

2 8

Members: The individuals who have built up (and may still be building up) entitlement in the 
Fund. They are divided into actives (current employee members), deferreds (ex-employees who 
have not yet retired) and pensioners (ex-employees who have now retired, and dependants of 
deceased ex-employees).

Minimum risk basis: an approach where the discount rate used to assess the liabilities is 
determined based on the market yields of Government bond investments based on the appropriate 
duration of the liabilities being assessed.  This is usually adopted when an employer is exiting the 
Fund.

Orphan liabilities: liabilities in the Fund for which there is no sponsoring employer within the 
Fund. Ultimately orphan liabilities must be underwritten by all other employers in the Fund.

Percentiles: relative ranking (in hundredths) of a particular range. For example, in terms of 
expected returns a percentile ranking of 75 indicates that in 25% of cases, the return achieved 
would be greater than the figure, and in 75% cases the return would be lower.

Phasing/stepping of contributions: when there is an increase/decrease in an employer’s 
long term contribution requirements, the increase in contributions can be gradually stepped or 
phased in over an agreed period. The phasing/stepping can be in equal steps or on a bespoke 
basis for each employer.

Pooling: employers may be grouped together for the purpose of calculating contribution rates, 
(i.e. a single contribution rate applicable to all employers in the pool). A pool may still require each 
individual employer to ultimately pay for its own share of deficit, or (if formally agreed) it may allow 
deficits to be passed from one employer to another.

Prepayment: the payment by employers of contributions to the Fund earlier than that certified 
by the Actuary. The amount paid will be reduced in monetary terms compared to the certified 
amount to reflect the early payment. 

Present Value: the value of projected benefit payments, discounted back to the valuation date.

Profile: the profile of an employer’s membership or liability reflects various measurements of that 
employer’s members, i.e. current and former employees. This includes: the proportions which are 
active, deferred or pensioner; the average ages of each category; the varying salary or pension 
levels; the lengths of service of active members vs their salary levels, etc. 

Prudent Assumption: an assumption where the outcome has a greater than 50/50 chance of 
being achieved i.e. the outcome is more likely to be overstated than understated. Legislation and 
Guidance requires the assumptions adopted for an actuarial valuation to be prudent.

Rates and Adjustments Certificate: a formal document required by the LGPS 
Regulations, which must be updated at least every three years at the conclusion of the formal 
valuation. This is completed by the actuary and confirms the contributions to be paid by each 
employer (or pool of employers) in the Fund for the three year period until the next valuation is 
completed.

Real Return or Real Discount Rate: a rate of return or discount rate net of (CPI) inflation.



S H R O P S H I R E  C O U N T Y  P E N S I O N  F U N D F U N D I N G  S T R A T E G Y  S T A T E M E N T

2 9

Recovery Plan: a strategy by which an employer will make up a funding deficit over a specified 
period of time (“the recovery period”), as set out in the Funding Strategy Statement.

Scheduled bodies: types of employer explicitly defined in the LGPS Regulations, whose 
employers must be offered membership of their local LGPS Fund. These include Councils, 
colleges, universities, police and fire authorities etc, other than employees who have entitlement to 
a different public sector pension scheme (e.g. teachers, police and fire officers, university 
lecturers).

Section 13 Valuation: in accordance with Section 13 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2014, 
the Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) have been commissioned to advise the Department 
for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) in connection with reviewing the 2016 LGPS 
actuarial valuations. All LGPS Funds therefore will be assessed on a standardised set of 
assumptions as part of this process.

Solvency Funding Target: an assessment of the present value of benefits to be paid in the 
future. The desired funding target is to achieve a solvency level of a 100% i.e. assets equal to the 
accrued liabilities at the valuation date assessed on the ongoing concern basis.

Valuation funding basis:  the financial and demographic assumptions used to determine the 
employer’s contribution requirements.   The relevant discount rate used for valuing the present 
value of liabilities is consistent with an expected rate of return of the Fund’s investments.  This 
includes an expected out-performance over gilts in the long-term from other asset classes, held by 
the Fund.

50/50 Scheme: in the LGPS, active members are given the option of accruing a lower personal 
benefit in the 50/50 Scheme, in return for paying a lower level of contribution.



Committee and date
Pensions Committee

25 November 2016

10.00am
Public

PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION MONITORING REPORT

Responsible Officer Debbie Sharp
Email: Debbie.sharp@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 252192 Fax: N/A

1. Summary

1.1 The report provides Members with monitoring information on the 
performance of and issues affecting the Pensions Administration Team.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to accept the position as set out in the report. 
  

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 Risk Management 
Performance is considered and monitored to ensure regulatory 
timescales and key performance indicators are adhered to.  
Administration risks are identified and managed and are reported to 
committee on an annual basis.

3.2 Human Rights Act Appraisal
The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the 
Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3 Environmental Appraisal
There is no direct environmental, equalities or climate change 
consequence of this report.

3.4  Financial Implications
Managing team performance and working with other Administering 
Authorities ensures costs to scheme employers for Scheme 
Administration are reduced.  However, it must be noted that the 
introduction of the 2014 LGPS and the increased governance 
introduced by the Public Services Pension Act 2013 has increased the 
resources required by the administration team. Reconciling the Funds 
Guaranteed Minimum Pension Liabilities with HMRC will have a direct 
cost for the Fund but if this is not undertaken the Fund risks taking on 
financial liabilities it didn’t need to and having its data called into 



Pensions Committee; 25 November 2016: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

2

question by the Fund Actuary. LGPS having to fully index GMP’s will 
increase costs for the Fund going forward.

4. Performance and Team Update

4.1 The team’s output and performance level to the end of October 2016 is 
attached at Appendix A.  

4.2 The chart shows that tasks becoming due and those outstanding 
increased during October 2016.  Also statistics are showing that some 
month’s levels are now higher than historically expected.  This is 
mainly due to the timing of employers uploading data through the 
iConnect service.  If this occurs later in the month the number of tasks 
still outstanding will be higher as the team have not been able to 
process these tasks before the end of the month. Collecting the data 
electronically has meant workloads across the team have increased as 
we are receiving far more data changes than we did in the past.  This 
will improve the quality of the data held.

4.3 The systems team are looking at getting more employers to send data 
through the iConnect service.  This will start with rolling out a new 
“online” version to smaller employers, which allows them to input data 
via an online return rather than submitting a spreadsheet that the team 
have to manually upload. Guides will be issued together with a full 
training programme delivered either in person or where this is not 
possible by telephone.

4.4 At the last committee, an update was given on the Pensions 
Administration Audit and Systems Audit for the year 2015/16.  The 
ratings for both were good, the highest rating available.  The audits for 
2016/17 are about to be undertaken.

5. Help Desk Statistics

5.1 The following chart shows the number of queries received through the 
helpline number. 

Aug 2016  Sept 2016 Oct 2016
Telephone calls 
received 794 904 835

Queries dealt 
with by 
helpdesk at first 
point of contact 
%*

93.83% 90.60% 92.81%

Users visiting 
the Website 7864 3390 3208

 * Where queries have not been dealt with by helpdesk, this will usually mean 
that the calls have been picked up by the rest of the team.

            



Pensions Committee; 25 November 2016: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

3

6 Communications

6.1 Annual Benefit Statements (ABS) for active members were issued 
electronically, on Member Self Service (MSS), in August 2016.  This is 
a secure electronic means where by members log into their own 
account to view their ABS. The service also allows them to do their own 
projections.

6.2 Significant work has been undertaken to increase the number of 
members logging on to the system.  In September 2016 letters were 
issued to all members who had not yet registered on MSS.  This 
included an “activation key” which is needed to register for the first 
time.  As a result the number of individual active members using MSS 
increased from 13% as at 31 May 2016 to 26% as at the 31 October 
2016.  More communication work is planned to further increase this 
uptake.

6.3  It is interesting to note the following Website traffic statistics;

 When members were informed that their ABS was ready to view, 
there were 686 hits on one day

 The following week the average visits per day were 300-400 
compared to the usual 100 hits per day.

 Hits to the website remained high during September but had 
reduced by the end of the month to the normal level.

 There was a further increase in activity when the Activation key 
letters were sent out. Including 842 hits in a single day.

 In October an email was sent with information on the Annual 
Report and advertising the Annual Meeting, this gave another 
increase of 454 hits in a single day.

 During the past 3 month period 7,236 people visited the “view 
your pension account online” page.

6.4 Presentations and 1-2-1’s were held at Severnside Housing, Wrekin 
Housing Trust, Telford & Wrekin Council and South Shropshire 
Housing.  These were held throughout September and October at the 
request of the employers.  In total 105 members took up the 
opportunity to have a 1-2-1 consultation with a member of the 
pension’s team.

6.5 The retired members’ newsletter InTouch attached at Appendix B was 
issued in early November.  It covers an update from Jean Smith, 
pensioner representative and also features an update from the 
Pensions Manager and covers various pension issues such as death 
benefits in retirement.

6.6 A newsletter for active members is being prepared in collaboration with 
5 other LGPS Funds.  The newsletter will cover pension and taxation 
rules, FAQs the pension’s team usually receives and will encourage 
more members to sign up to MSS.



Pensions Committee; 25 November 2016: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

4

6.7 The Annual Report is available on the Fund’s website and a link to this 
was emailed to all members to view.

6.8 The Prudential organised presentations with Shropshire Council and 
Telford & Wrekin between July and October. This covered Additional 
Voluntary Contribution options within the LGPS.  In most cases these 
were supported by a member from the Pensions Team.  Over 247 
members attended across the two employers and the presentations 
were well received. 

7 The Pensions Regulator

7.1 The Pensions Regulator recently reminded public service schemes of 
their duty to publish information on their pension boards or risk being 
fined (up to £5,000 for an individual and up to £50,000 in any other 
case). Fines can be imposed for any compliance failure against the 
Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and the Regulator’s Code of 
Practice.  The Fund’s website contains the information required.

7.2 The Regulator has launched an interactive self-assessment tool for 
public service pension schemes, including the LGPS. The tool is 
designed to help a scheme identify issues and areas for improvement, 
and what actions to take to ensure it is being run effectively and 
meeting their legal requirements and complying with the guidance set 
out in the Regulator’s code of practice number 14.

8 Government publish response to College insolvency 
consultation

8.1 Following the Government consultation undertaken earlier this year to 
introduce insolvency provisions for further education and sixth form 
colleges in England, the Department for Education has published its 
formal response. 

8.2 The response notes that the LGPS was a common issue raised in 
responses and the Government respond to a number of the concerns 
raised about the potential impacts on the LGPS. In particular, the 
Government’s views are as follows: 
 Following the area review process, the risk of college insolvency will 

be very low and the special administration regime (SAR) will be a 
tool of last resort. 

 However, in the event of a college insolvency event, most cases 
would not result in the crystallisation of a pension deficit as there 
would be a merger with, or transfer to, another provider. 

 Pension funds should nevertheless assess the strength of each 
employer’s covenant. 

 Providing guarantees from Government for college liabilities would 
not be appropriate as colleges do not form part of the public sector. 
The comparison with academies, for whom the Government does 



Pensions Committee; 25 November 2016: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

5

provide a limited guarantee, is therefore not fitting because 
academies are public bodies. 

 During an insolvency event, the Government would consider 
whether ongoing pension contributions should form part of the costs 
of administration to be funded by Government. 

8.3 The Government will now take forward their plans via primary 
legislation when parliamentary time permits.

9. Publication of LGPS (E&W) statistics 2015/16 

9.1 Following the completion of the 2015/16 SF3 data collection forms by 
LGPS administering authorities in England and Wales, DCLG have 
published their results. 
The key points from the England release are: 
 Total Local Government Pension Scheme expenditure in England in 

2015-16 was £10.0 billion. On a like-for-like basis the increase was 
£0.6 billion or 6.1% 

 Total Local Government Pension Scheme income in England in 
2015-16 was £12.4 billion. On a like-for-like basis the decrease was 
£0.2 billion or 1.4%. 

 Employers’ contributions to the Local Government Pension Scheme 
in 2015-16 amounted to £6.6 billion and employees’ contributions to 
the scheme were £2.0 billion. 

 The market value of the Local Government Pension Scheme funds 
in England at the end of March 2016 was just over £200 billion. 

 The Local Government Pension Scheme in England encompasses 
more than 5.06 million people. Of this number, 1.8 million are 
employees who are still contributing to the scheme, 1.5 million are 
pensioners and 1.8 million are former employees who are entitled to 
a pension at some time in the future 

10 Publication of September 2016 CPI rate 

10.1 On 18 October 2016, the Office for National Statistics (ONS) 
announced that the Consumer Prices Index (CPI) rate of inflation for 
September 2016 was 1.0%. 

10.2 Government policy in recent years has been to base both pensions 
increase under the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971 and revaluation of 
pension accounts under section 9 of the Public Service Pensions Act 
2013 on the rate of CPI for September of the previous year. 

10.3 We await confirmation from the Government in due course that 
revaluation and pensions increase for April 2017 will apply in the LGPS 
at a rate of 1.0%.



Pensions Committee; 25 November 2016: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

6

11 Scheme Advisory Board – implications for the LGPS of a 
significant increase in academy employers

11.1 The Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) has commissioned PWC to 
investigate the implications for the LGPS of a significant increase in 
academy employers and to develop options to manage those 
implications. They will present their findings to the SAB in March 2017 
in the form of a comprehensive report covering the administrative, 
actuarial, legal and investment issues relating to the implications 
identified and options proposed. Between now and the end of the year 
PWC will be looking to engage with stakeholders, including 
administering authorities, to gain their input.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Pensions Committee Meeting 21 September 2016 Pensions Administration Report 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
NA

Local Member
NA

Appendices
Appendix A – Performance Monitoring
Appendix B – InTouch 



Appendix A

A
pr-13

Jun-13
A

ug-13
O

ct-13
D

ec-13
Feb-14
A

pr-14
Jun-14
A

ug-14
O

ct-14
D

ec-14
Feb-15
A

pr-15
Jun-15
A

ug-15
O

ct-15
D

ec-15
Feb-16
A

pr-16
Jun-16
A

ug-16
O

ct-16

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Tasks Which Became Due

Procedures Outstanding at end of Month

Outstanding Excluding Checking

Number of Procedures Processed 0n 
Time

Procedures Completed

Procedures Processed On Time In Office 
P384

Total Processed In Office P384

Terminated Procedures P383

Task Statistics

Month

N
um

be
r o

f T
as

ks





Autumn 2016
FOR RETIRED MEMBERS’ OF THE SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

P4 | Jean Talking
An update from your pensioner 
representative.

P8 | Annual Meeting
When and where, getting there, 
what’s on and how to contact us.

P5 | Pension Board Update
Find out what the Pension Board 
have been up to.



2 | Contents

Contents
Welcome by Debbie Sharp

Jean Talking

Valuation

Local Pension Board Update

Annual Meeting

Reporting the death of a Scheme Member

Latest News and Updates

National Fraud Initiative

Keeping InTouch

Alzheimer’s Society

What are you doing now?

Pensions Online

Contact us

3

4

5

6

8

10

12

13

14

16

18

19

20

When are pensions paid?
Your pension is normally paid on the 29th 
of each month unless that falls on a bank 
holiday or weekend, when it will be paid on 
the previous working day closest to the 29th.

We no longer send out payslips unless your 
pension payment has changed by £5 from 
the previous month. Don’t forget you can 
securely view your payslips and P60s, see 
page 13 for more information. 

Below are your 2016/17 pay dates:
October 2016 Friday 28th
November 2016 Tuesday 29th 
December 2016 Thursday 22nd
January 2017 Friday 27th
February 2017 Tuesday 28th
March 2017 Wednesday 29th
April 2017 Friday 28th

FUTURE PAY DATES 

PAY DATES FOR THE REST OF 2017 WILL BE ADDED TO OUR WEBSITE OVER THE NEXT COUPLE OF MONTHS.



Welcome | 3

Welcome to the Autumn 2016 edition of 
InTouch. Not to long ago I had the opportunity 
to catch up with many of you at the Retired 
Members’ Meeting. I hope that you found the 
presentations from Affinity Connect and West 
Mercia Police as helpful and informative as 
I did. If you have any suggestions on guest 
speakers for next year’s meeting, please get in 
contact with the team. 

Here in the pensions office we have been 
very busy as this year is the Fund’s Triennial 
Valuation, the results of which we will report in 
the Spring 2017 edition of this magazine. For a 
more detailed explanation on the Valuation and 
its importance please turn to page 7. 

This year’s Annual Meeting is taking place 
on the 2nd December. The Annual Meeting 
updates you on all of the latest Pension 
Fund news and provides a chance to ask the 
pensions team any questions you may have 
about your benefits. 

This will be your opportunity to find out about 
the initial Valuation results, how the LGPS 
investment pooling project is progressing, plus 
hear one of our investment managers speak.  
Definitely not to be missed! 

On page 4 you can find out what your pensioner 
representative, Jean Smith, has been up to over 
the last few months. As always if you have any 
questions for Jean please contact the team and 
we will pass them on for you.
 
We also have an update on page 6 on how the 
Pension Board have been getting on. The board 
members have been working on your behalf 
attending training sessions, board meetings and 
pension events. 

Thank you for reading, and I hope you take the 
opportunity to catch up with the team at the  
Annual Meeting in December.

Welcome

DEBBIE SHARP 
PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION MANAGER 

SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND



“Jeantalking” 
I do hope you have enjoyed the summer with 
its assortment of weather. The Annual Retired 
Members meeting was held on 29th June, which  
was one of the wettest days of the year, but it did  
not deter members with a good attendance. The  
speakers and the stands were very interesting 
and it was a most enjoyable morning. 

Since last talking to you, I have attended two 
pensions committee meetings, the Retired 
Members’ Meeting, the Annual Training Day 
and I am now preparing for the next committee 
meeting in September. 
 
The three-year valuation of the Pension Fund 
is taking place this year interim results should 
be available in November 2016, and provided 
at the Annual Meeting. Despite the Brexit vote 
being a surprise to the financial markets, there 
has not been any significant effect on the 
Pension Fund as foreign exchange rates have 
helped global funds. 

Over the last quarter to the end of March the 
Pension Fund increased by 1.2%. The rolling 
three-year performance of the Fund is 7.2% 
per annum compared to a benchmark of 6.1%. 
Infrastructure delivered a return of 19.7% p.a., 
Fixed Income Managers achieved a return of 
3.9% p.a. and Private Equity earned 15.4% p.a. 

I mentioned in my Spring article that the 
Government had issued Investment Reform 
Criteria and Guidance for Pension Funds to 
pool their funds to have assets of at least £25 
billion in total. Shropshire Pension Fund is 

progressing well with creating an investment 
pool with Cheshire, Derbyshire, Leicestershire, 
Nottinghamshire, Staffordshire, West Midlands 
(including West Midlands Integrated Transport 
Authority) and Worcestershire. In July, the above  
Funds’ submitted a detailed business case to 
the Government for creation of a multi-asset 
investment pool called LGPS Central. 

The business case addresses the government’s 
four criteria for investment pooling as follows:

1. Scale: £34 billion of assets that exceeds  
the governments expected figure of at  
least £25 billion

2. Governance: Expected to meet the 
Governments criteria for robust governance

3. Cost savings and value for money: With 
projected savings of £200 million by 2034 
net of transitional, set-up and operating 
costs, delivered through economies of scale, 
mandate rationalisation, fee negotiations and 
more use of direct management

4. Infrastructure investment of 5% or more 
of assets: The pool is exploring National 
Infrastructure investment platforms 

The pooling arrangements are expected to 
be in place by 1st April 2018. However, each 
authority will still maintain its own identity and 
local accountability whilst achieving savings.

I do hope you will be able to attend the Annual 
Pensions meeting that is taking place in the 
Council Chamber at the Shirehall in Shrewsbury 
on Friday 2nd December 2016.

4 | Jean Talking

JEAN SMITH
PENSIONER REPRESENTATIVE  

PENSIONS COMMITTEE



The Valuation analyses 
scheme membership by 
type, assesses the Fund’s 
financial position, sets out the 
assumptions for future inflation 
and investment returns and 
then provides a schedule 
of the contribution rates for 
each of the Fund’s employing 
bodies. The Valuation happens 
every three years with the 
previous one being undertaken 
as at 31st March 2013.

Shropshire County Pension 
Fund’s Actuary, Mercer, 
carries out the valuation and 
reports their findings in the 
actuarial report. Mercer are 
currently working on the data 
for the 2016 report. The 
valuation reports for 2013 and 
2010 can be found on the 
Pension Fund website, and 
once released in spring next 
year, the 2016 actuarial report 
will also be uploaded to  
the website. 

The 2013 valuation showed 
that the Fund had assets 
to cover 76% of the Fund’s 
liabilities. The 2016 valuation 
will focus on membership up 
to 31st March 2016 and the 
results will be released by  
31st March 2017. We will 
report the Actuary’s findings in 
the Spring 2017 edition  
of InTouch. 

Valuation
A Valuation of the Fund is undertaken to ensure  

that the Fund’s assets are sufficient to meet the Fund’s liabilities.

Valuation | 5



6 | Local Pension Board – Update from the Chairman

Update from the Chairman

The Shropshire Pension Board  
has four representatives, and they are:
Stuart Wheeler - who is an employer 
representative and who is the Head of Human 
Resources, Marketing and Communications at 
Severnside Housing.

Liz Furey - who is the Director of Finance at 
Harper Adams University, and Liz is an
employer representative.

Pat Hockley - who has an extensive career 
background in contract management and 
commissioning. Pat is a member representative.

Mike Morris - who is also a member 
representative, and Chair of the Pension 
Board, and whose background is financial 
management and Commissioning.

These four Board members are supported by  
Shropshire County Pension Fund and Administrative  
staff who provide detailed updates on legislation,  
as well as reports and responses to any 
information which the Board calls for.

Local Pension Board

What is the Pension Board’s function?
Every Public Service pension scheme is 
required to have a Pension Board. The role of 
the Board is to help to ensure that the scheme 
complies with governance and administrative 
requirements - in other words to see that the 
scheme is working properly in accordance 
with its own rules and for the benefit of its 
members.

Who are the people on the  
Shropshire County Pension Board?
All Pension Boards have to have an equal 
number of employer representatives and
member representatives - and there has to be a 
minimum of four Board members in total.

What it does  
& how it works



Local Pension Board – Update from the Chairman | 7

How often does the  
Pension Board meet - and where?
The Pension Board meets at least twice a year, 
usually at the Shirehall in Shrewsbury, and those  
meeting dates are shown, in advance, on the 
Council’s website - and they are open to the public.
If anyone wants to raise a question they can do so  
by sending it in writing, in advance of the meeting  
so it can be answered at the meeting itself.

How do the Board members  
keep their knowledge up to date?
As you would expect, the Pensions Regulator 
gives us clear guidance on the content and 
amount of training and knowledge that a 
Pension Board member must have.
The Board takes its training responsibilities very 
seriously and each of the four members attends 
regular training updates, both at the Shirehall 
and also at special training events designed 
specifically for Pension Board members. These 
are delivered regionally and nationally, usually 
though the Local Government Association.

What are the costs of  
running the Pension Board?
The four Board members are not paid a salary 
for their Pension Board work. They can reclaim 
expenses for attending Pension Board and 
training meetings. They can also receive a 
standard meeting allowance for attendance in 
line with Shropshire Councillors agreed rates - if 
they choose to do so.

What subjects has the  
Board been looking at over the past year?
As well as receiving updates on legislative and 
administrative regulations the Board receives 
administration updates from the Shropshire 
Pensions administration team and reviews 
reports received from the Shropshire County 
Pensions Committee.

The Board also can request special reports on 
any issue which it wishes to examine in detail.

Over the past year these have included:
• A report on communication and 

safeguarding of hard to reach groups
• An update on the valuation of the 

Shropshire County Pension Scheme
• A report on the early implication and 

impact of BREXIT on the Pension fund
• An update on the current and future 

training needs of the Shropshire Board 
members

• Continuing reports on pension related 
complaints - and their resolution

• There are no restrictions on the questions 
or topics the Pension Board member can 
ask - or the report it can call for. All of 
the Board agendas and public reports are 
available online and can be accessed via 
the Funds website.  

What does the future  
hold for the Pension Board?
Firstly, Board members will need to continually 
update their knowledge - particularly in the light 
of changing regulations - and the implications 
and results of economic and social changes 
over next few years.

Also, the forthcoming LGPS ‘pooling’ 
arrangements, will be closely scrutinised by the 
Pensions Committee and the Pension Board 
particularly during the transition phases. More 
information on the LGPS pooling project can be 
found on the Fund website. 

Board members will continue to attend the 
meetings of the Shropshire County Pension 
Committee. The Board are not members of 
the Pensions Committee - nor do they seek 
to influence it - but they do act as informed 
observers.

The Board has a particularly busy year ahead 
and wishes to encourage pension fund
members to take an active interest in its 
meetings and reports.



8 | Annual Meeting

Annual Meeting

The Council Chamber

Shirehall

Shrewsbury

SY2 6ND

• • •

2nd December 2016

• • •

11.00am until 1.00pm

You are invited to the Fund’s 2016 Annual Meeting.

Where& When Getting there
Parking: There are limited additional spaces 
in the ‘overflow’ car park which is located 
opposite the ‘White Horse’ pub off the A5064 
(London Road) if spaces in the visitors car 
park next to the Shirehall are full. There is 
disabled parking available directly outside the 
front of the Shirehall. 

Further parking can be found in the Abbey 
Foregate car park located 15 minutes walk 
from the Shirehall.

Bus: A bus runs every 15 minutes from 
the main bus station in Shrewsbury town 
centre stopping directly outside the Shirehall. 
Buses run in both directions and numbers/
destinations include the 8 Sutton Road,  
81 Wellington, X5 Telford, 436 Bridgnorth and 
the 96 Ironbridge. 

The above details were correct at the 
time of printing. For the most up-to-date 
information please visit the arriva website 
directly at: www.arrivabus.co.uk

02



Annual Meeting | 9

Annual Meeting Reply Slip
I would like to attend the Annual Meeting on 2nd December 2016 (please tick)

Name:

Payroll ref: Tel:

Email:

PLEASE RETURN TO: PENSION SERVICES, SHIREHALL, ABBEY FOREGATE, SHREWSBURY, SHROPSHIRE, SY2 6ND

The meeting will provide an overview of all the 
latest Pension Fund news including the interim 
results of this year’s Valuation, updates on the 
LGPS pooling arrangements and a report on 
how the Fund has performed over the  
last year. 

Tea, coffee and biscuits will be available and 
members of the Pensions Team will be on 
hand to answer any questions you may have 
about your LGPS benefits. 

We hope to see you there!

What’s On?
Let us know you will be attending by returning 
the form at the bottom of the page.

OR 

Telephone: 01743 252130
Email: pensions@shropshire.gov.uk

Contact us



Reporting  
the death of a Scheme  

Member
As a retired member of the LGPS, in the event of death your benefits will no 

longer be payable but your loved ones may be entitled to benefits. The benefits 
that may be payable in the event of your death are: 

10 | Reporting the death of a Scheme Member

> The process
It is essential that the Fund is notified of a death 
as quickly as possible so that the process of 
establishing whether beneficiary benefits are 
due can be started without delay. If the estate 
is complex this can take a while.

1. When contacting the Fund it would behelpful  
if the following information is provided:

• Full name and address of the deceased
• The date of death and where the death 

was registered
• Reference number such as National 

Insurance number or Payroll Reference 
Number

• Full name and address of the Next of Kin 
and a contact telephone number

2. The Fund will then write to the Next of Kin to 
request to see the death certificate and any 
other relevant certificates, and declarations 
about marital status and any eligible children.

3. When entitlement has been established and 
the relevant benefits have been calculated, 
the recipient will be informed and the 
appropriate payments made.

> Lump Sum Death Grant
A Lump Sum Death Grant payment can be due 
as a one off payment. Any payment of a Lump 
Sum Death Grant depends on when you left the 
LGPS, and any payment due is at the discretion 
of the Pension Fund. But remember, you can 
nominate your beneficiaries by completing an 
expression of wish form.  

A Lump Sum Death Grant may be payable 
if you are under the age of 75 at the date of 
your death. How any Death Grant would be 
calculated would depend on the date that you 
retired from the Scheme. 

Left before 1st April 2008
A lump sum death grant would have been 
payable if you left the LGPS before 1st April 
2008 and died with less than 5 years pension 
paid. This period of 5 years has now elapsed.



Reporting the death of a Scheme Member | 11

Left between 1st April 2008  
and 31st March 2014
A lump sum death grant is payable if you left 
the LGPS between 1st April 2008 and 31st 
March 2014 and die under age 75 with less 
than 10 years pension paid. The amount 
payable is: 10 times your annual pension less 
the total amount of annual pension already paid.

Left after 31st March 2014
A lump sum death grant will be paid if you die 
and less than 10 years pension has been paid 
and you are under age 75. The amount payable 
would be based on the regulations in force for 
each tranche of service, pre and post April 2014: 

• Post April 2014 membership: 10 times 
your annual pension in respect of your 
membership of the Scheme after 31st 
March 2014 (prior to giving up any pension 
for a tax free cash lump sum), less any 
pension already paid to you in respect of 
your post 31st March 2014 membership 
and the amount of any tax-free cash lump 
sum you chose to take by giving up some 
of the pension you built up after 31st 
March 2014 when you drew your pension 
at retirement.

• Pre April 2014 membership: 10 times the 
level of your annual pension in respect of 
your membership of the Scheme before 
1st April 2014 (after giving up any pension 
for a tax free cash lump sum), less any 
pension already paid to you in respect of 
your pre 1st April 2014 membership.

If you are also an active  
member of the LGPS when you die 
If you are also an active member of the LGPS 
and die in service, the death grant payable would  
be calculated as above or the death in service 
lump sum death grant of three times your 
assumed pensionable pay, whichever is greater.  

> Survivors’ pension
Current scheme regulations allow a survivors’ 
pension to be paid in the event of your death 
to a spouse, civil partner, cohabiting partner 
or to any eligible children. Survivors’ pensions 
become effective from the day after death and 
any pension that may be payable will depend on 
the membership you had previously built up and 
when you left the LGPS.

Any spouses’ benefits payable in the event 
of your death would depend on the following 
periods of membership:

• Widows’ pensions are based on 
membership from 6th April 1978 or the 
date when you joined the scheme if later

• Widowers’ and civil partners are based on 
membership after 6th April 1988 or the 
date when you joined the scheme if later.

Widowers’ pension benefits are based on post 
5th April 1988 membership only, unless you are 
a female member who has previously made an 
election for any period from 1st April 1972 to 
5th April 1988 to count.

If you die leaving one or more eligible  
children, your children are entitled to a child’s 
pension. If there is more than one eligible  
child, the pension will be shared equally  
among the children.



Annual Report
The Annual Report highlights the important 
issues affecting the Fund over the previous 
financial year, together with full details about 
the Fund’s administration, management and 
financial performance. 

Financial statements contained in the report 
record the transactions of the Scheme during 
the year ended 31st March 2016. 

You can read the 2015/16 Annual Report, 
and previous reports, on the Fund website or 
by visiting the Shirehall, Shrewsbury to view a 
paper copy.  

The LGPS –  
Implications of the EU referendum
The following statement has been issued by 
the Department for Communities and Local 
Government following the decision in June 
2016 for Britain to leave the European Union: 

“The vast majority of EU legislation which 
impacts either directly or indirectly on the 
LGPS such as the Institutions for Occupational 
Retirement Provision (IORPs) is already written 
into UK legislation. Accordingly the scheme will 
need to continue to comply with such legislation 
until such time as Britain leaves the EU after 
which it would of course be the prerogative of a 
future UK government to seek to repeal some or 
all of this legislation subject to the terms of any 
new trade arrangements made with the EU.

With regard to UK government policy and 
legislative plans for the LGPS the situation is ‘no 
change’. Regulatory changes, policy objectives 
and the timescales for implementing them 
remain as they were before the vote.”

Your pensioner representative Jean Smith 
mentioned in her article on page 4, that there 
has not been any significant impact on the 
Shropshire Fund as a result of Brexit. This will 
be monitored at Pensions Committee and Jean 
will ensure that retired members of the scheme 
are kept informed of the latest news and 
updates through her reports for InTouch. You 
can review the papers and reports of the the 
latest committee minutes on the Fund website. 

The latest issues affecting the Fund will be 
covered in greater detail at the Annual Meeting 
on 2nd December. Please see page 8 for 
further information about this year’s meeting. 

latest 
news & updates

12 | Latest News and Updates

The Fund published its Annual 
Report for 2015/16  

on the 30 September 2016. 



MORE ON THE NATIONAL FRAUD INITIATIVE CAN BE OBTAINED BY CONTACTING AUDIT SERVICES ON: 
TELEPHONE: 01743 257737

WWW.SHROPSHIRE.GOV.UK/PRIVACY/NATIONAL-FRAUD-INITIATIVE

This initiative requires that payroll and 
pensions data be made available for bodies 
responsible for auditing and administering 
public funds.

Being part of the National Fraud Initiative 
means we may share information with other 
public bodies, such as the Department for Work 
and Pensions, in order to prevent and detect 
fraud. All data will be dealt in line with the Data 
Protection Act 1998 and the Code of Data 
Matching Practice 2008.

national  
fraud initiative

Shropshire  
County Pension 
Fund participates 
in the National 
Fraud Initiative.

Protecting yourself from Fraud | 13



Has your marital  
status changed?
If you have recently married, entered into 
a civil partnership, or undergone a divorce, 
please let the Fund know. You will be asked to 
provide your original marriage certificate, civil 
partnership certificate or Decree Absolute to 
authorise the change.

14 | Keeping In Touch

IF YOU WOULD LIKE MORE INFORMATION ABOUT  
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND YOU CAN VISIT OUR WEBSITE. 

WWW.SHROPSHIRECOUNTYPENSIONFUND.CO.UK

Keeping 
In Touch

Changed your  
bank account?
To notify the Fund of a change to your bank 
details, please complete and return the Bank 
Details form which can be found on the Fund 
website, or send a signed letter to the Fund. 
Please be aware that payments can only be 
made to bank accounts registered in the name 
of the member who is in receipt of the pension.



Keeping In Touch | 15

Moved  
house recently?
If you have recently moved house it is important 
to inform the Fund of your new postal address. 
Address changes cannot be accepted over the 
phone as a signature is required to authorise 
the change, therefore if you need to notify us 
of a change of address, please send a signed 
letter to the Pension Fund or complete and 
return the Address Change Form which can be 
found on our website. 

Are your nominated 
beneficiaries up-to-date? 
As a retired member of the LGPS, a death 
grant lump sum may be payable in the event of 
your death. It is important to check your death 
grant nominations regularly, particularly after a 
change in personal circumstances. If you would 
like to update your death grant nominations, 
please complete the Expression of Wish form 
which can be found on the Pension Fund 
website.

CONTACT US
WRITE: PENSION SERVICES, SHIREHALL, ABBEY FOREGATE, SHREWSBURY, SHROPSHIRE, SY2 6ND

TELEPHONE: 01743 252130

Please remember to keep in 
touch with Shropshire County 
Pension Fund and notify us if 
any of your personal details 
change. 



LEARN MORE ABOUT  
ALZHEIMER’S RESEARCH UK AT: 

WWW.ALZHEIMERSRESEARCHUK.ORG

Fighting against dementia

Alzheimer’s 
Society 

Around 23 million people in the UK know a close friend or family member 
with dementia. Retired LGPS member Katie Foster is one of them.

16 | Alzheimer’s Society

Katie, who has lived in Shropshire for over 30 years, lost her dad Tim to Alzheimer’s in 2007.  
But she wants to do something positive rather than watch it happen to others. Katie is 

determined to support dementia research and help find a way to beat this devastating condition.



Alzheimer’s Society | 17

Katie has always lived a busy life. She became 
part of the Shropshire County Pension Fund 
after working at Ironbridge Gorge Museum for 
almost 20 years as Head of Marketing & PR. 
She now hopes to find more time to help 
Alzheimer’s Research UK, the UK’s leading 
dementia research charity, in establishing 
regional fundraising groups in Shropshire.

Alzheimer’s can cause an array of symptoms, 
including memory loss, confusion and problems 
carrying out daily tasks such as eating, washing 
and dressing. Katie said:

“One of the hardest things when caring for 
my dad was trying to get him to wash or change 
his clothes. He wouldn’t do it himself and got 
very agitated if I tried to press him. To make 
things worse, he was registered blind due to 
glaucoma, adding greatly to the confusion and 
isolation that dementia can cause.

“As his dementia advanced, my dad 
increasingly seemed to live in the past. He was 
a prisoner of war for five years after being taken 
prisoner defending Dunkirk in 1940. Many of 
his comrades were killed, and he ended up in 
a PoW camp in Poland. In the last year of his 
life, he often thought he was back in the camp 
and had very vivid visions of it. People often 
just think of forgetfulness when they think of 
dementia, but it’s so much more than that.”
Alzheimer’s Research UK powers world class 
studies into dementia research, focusing on 
prevention, diagnosis and treatments. Studies 
show that one in three people over 65 will die 
with some form of dementia.

Fundraising groups play a crucial part in the 
fight against dementia, which currently affects 
around 5,000 people in Shropshire alone. 
Volunteers with a range of skills are required for 
the groups, which will aim to raise vital funds 
and awareness for the charity by arranging 
events and activities in the local community. 
Katie commented: 

“I’ve always enjoyed getting involved 
in fundraising and, having seen my father 
with dementia, I knew I wanted to support 
Alzheimer’s Research UK. Dementia is one 
of few conditions that takes away someone’s 
personality and changes who they truly are. 

“I hope others will join me in raising 
money for this vital cause and helping future 
generations who, thanks to this research, 
hopefully won’t have to watch a much-loved 
relative or friend disappear in front of them as 
dementia takes hold.”

What is dementia?
• The term dementia is used to describe a 

collection of symptoms, including a decline 
in memory, reasoning and communication 
skills.

• Over time people with dementia can 
have trouble with everyday tasks such as 
feeding and dressing themselves, walking, 
talking and in the later stages even 
swallowing.

• There are many forms of dementia - 
Alzheimer’s disease is the most common, 
followed by vascular dementia. 

• Dementia is caused by diseases of the 
brain. It is not an inevitable part of ageing.

TO FIND OUT MORE ABOUT JOINING AN ALZHEIMER’S RESEARCH UK FUNDRAISING GROUP,  
PLEASE CONTACT ZOE BAGGOTT, SHROPSHIRE-BASED REGIONAL FUNDRAISING OFFICER:

TELEPHONE: 07469 852501 | EMAIL: ZOE.BAGGOTT@ALZHEIMERSRESEARCHUK.ORG



18 | What are you doing now?

What are  
you doing now?

What do members do in their retirement? 
What do I do in my retirement? Not a lot you might say.

Collecting takes up much of my time in 
particular if there is need to research a badge 
which is not shown in any reference book. The 
Corps museum is a good source of reference, 
but there are others.

I now have some 2,000 items in my collection, 
including Royal Marines Light Infantry and Royal 
Marines Artillery badges. These two arms of 
the corps were amalgamated in 1923. 

The earliest item I have is an Olten Ranks Cross 
Bar Plate worn between 1802 and 1828 which 
was worn at the Battle of Trafalgar in 1805.
In addition to Royal Marines badges I also 
collect Army cloth shoulder titles and have 
some 300 of these. Some regiments have a 
variety of different titles.

Just to get me started, after sorting out my 
family photographs and papers I went on to 
produce my family tree, going back to 1710.

A busy retirement.

HAROLD BERRY 
RETIRED MEMBER

SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

My first task on retirement was to sort out 
family photographs and papers which had been 
kept in two shoe boxes over the years. In which, 
I found a small box of badges I had worn during 
my service in the Royal Marines and their 
Reserves. This awoke my interest in the corps 
“once a marine always a marine” as they say. 
So, I joined the Royal Marines Historical Society.

I started to visit bric-a-brac shops and it 
is surprising what can be found in such 
shops, military antique shops, military fairs 
and auctions. So started my collection of 
memorabilia. But, I found there was more to it 
than just collecting. I needed to know how to 
spot an original badge, what was a reproduction 
and there are many on the market, and how to 
clean a gilt badge without removing the gilt. 

Then, how you record your badges, such as 
date purchased, condition, when worn and 
by which officers. Finally how to display your 
badges. There are a number of books on the 
subject which are a great help to a beginner. 



Pensions
Online

Register today by visiting: 

www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk

Information about your  
LGPS pension

Latest News and  
Updates

Forms and  
guidance

Pension Payment  
dates

View your payslips  
& P60s

Click register 

under ‘View your 

payslips’



If you can read this but know someone who cannot,  
please contact us on (01743) 252130 so we can 

provide this information in a more suitable format. 
If you wish to contact us on any issue in this 

magazine or have a query regarding your pension, 
please contact the Pensions Team. Office hours 

are Monday to Thursday 8.30am to 5pm and Friday 
8.30am to 4pm. If you would prefer to discuss your 
pension in person, you are welcome to come in and 

see us at the address below:

Pension Services, Shropshire Council,  
Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, SY2 6ND

Email: pensions@shropshire.gov.uk
Website: www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk

Tel: 01743 252130 

OTHER USEFUL CONTACTS
Tax Office 

Tel: 0300 200 3300 
or from outside the UK 0044 1619 308 705

Department for Work and Pensions 
Tel: 0345 606 0265 (For State Pension queries.)

Website: www.gov.uk

Contact us 

Do you need this magazine in an  
alternative format?  

If so, please contact us. 






















	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last Meeting
	8 Corporate Governance Monitoring
	Manager Voting (July-Sept 16) Appendix A
	REO Activity Report (July-Sept 16) Appendix B

	9 LGPS Central Investment Pooling
	APPENDIX 1
	APPENDIX 2 - Agreements summary
	APPENDIX 3

	10 Actuarial Valuation 2016
	Appendix A Summary of 2016 Valuation Results

	11 Funding Strategy Statement
	Appendix A FSS Final Draft

	12 Pensions Administration Monitoring Report
	11.25.16 Admin Appendix A
	11.25.16 Admin Appendix B InTouch_Autumn_2016_Web

	14 Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Categories 2 and 3)
	16 New Admission Bodies (Exempted by Category 3)
	17 Appeals under the Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure (Exempted by Category 3)
	18 Record of Breaches (Exempted by Category 3)
	2016.17 Breaches log


